
City of Palm Coast Created on 8/11/22

City of Palm Coast
Agenda

Planning and Land 
Development Regulation 

Board

Chair Clinton Smith
Vice Chair Sandra Shank

Board Member James Albano
Board Member Sybil Dodson-Lucas

Board Member Jake Scully
Board Member Charles Lemon

Board Member Christopher Gabriel
Alternate Board Member Hung 

Hilton
Alternate Board Member Suzanne 

Nicholson
School Board Rep Patty Bott

City Hall
160 Lake Avenue

Palm Coast, FL 32164
www.palmcoastgov.com

Wednesday, August 17, 2022    5:30 PM City Hall-Community Wing

 Public Participation shall be in accordance with Section 286.0114 Florida Statutes.

 Public comment on issues on the agenda or public participation shall be limited to 3 minutes.

 Other matters of concern may be discussed as determined by Committee during the meeting.

 If you wish to obtain more information regarding the agenda, please contact the Community Development Department at 386-
986-3736.

 In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons needing a reasonable
accommodation to participate in any of these proceedings or meeting should contact the City Clerk at 386-986-3713, at least
48 hours prior to the meeting.

 It is proper meeting etiquette to silence all electronic devices, including cell phones while meeting is in session.

 Any person who decides to appeal any decision with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the
proceedings, and for such purpose, may need to hire a court reporter to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is
made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call and Determination of a Quorum

Approval of Meeting Minutes

1 MEETING MINUTES OF THE JUNE 15, 2022 PLANNING AND LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATION BOARD MEETING

Public Hearing

1



City of Palm Coast Created on 8/11/22

2 KINGS CROSSING STORAGE FACILITY RE-ESTABLISHED SPECIAL EXCEPTION, 
APPLICATION # 5173

3 PALM COST PARK – LOT 4, PARCEL 4 STORAGE FACILITY, A TECHNICAL SITE PLAN, 
APPLICATION # 4862

4 BROWARD-PALM COAST STORAGE FACILITY, A TECHNICAL SITE PLAN, APPLICATION # 
5077

Board Discussion and Staff Issues

Adjournment

2



City of Palm Coast, Florida
Agenda Item

Agenda Date: August 17, 2022

Department COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT

Amount  

Division PLANNING Account 
#

 

Subject MEETING MINUTES OF THE JUNE 15, 2022 PLANNING AND LAND 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATION BOARD MEETING

Presenter: Irene Schaefer, Recording Secretary 

Background:

Recommended Action:
Approve as presented.

 

3



 
 

 

City of Palm Coast 
Minutes 

Planning and Land 
Development Regulation 

Board 
 

Chair Clinton Smith 
Vice Chair Sandra Shank 

Board Member James Albano 
Board Member Sybil Dodson-

Lucas 
Board Member Jake Scully 

Board Member Charles Lemon 
Board Member Christopher Gabriel 

Alternate Board Member Hung 
Hilton 

Alternate Board Member Suzanne 
Nicholson 

School Board Rep Patty Bott 

City Hall 
160 Lake Avenue 

Palm Coast, FL 32164 
www.palmcoastgov.com 

          

Wednesday, June 15, 2022                                                                                                                    5:30 PM  City Hall- Community Wing 
 

• Public Participation shall be in accordance with Section 286.0114 Florida Statutes. 
 

• Public comment on issues on the agenda or public participation shall be limited to 3 minutes. 
 

• Other matters of concern may be discussed as determined by Committee during the meeting. 
 

• If you wish to obtain more information regarding the agenda, please contact the Community Development Department at 386-
986-3736. 
 

• In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons needing a reasonable 
accommodation to participate in any of these proceedings or meeting should contact the City Clerk at 386-986-3713, at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting. 
 

• It is proper meeting etiquette to silence all electronic devices, including cell phones while meeting is in session. 
 

• Any person who decides to appeal any decision with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the 
proceedings, and for such purpose, may need to hire a court reporter to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is 
made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 

 
 
 
A Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Chair Smith called the June 15, 2022 Planning Land Development Regulation 
Board (PLDRB) meeting to order at 5:30pm.  

 
B Roll Call and Determination of a Quorum 

 
Present and responding to roll call were: 
Chair Smith 
Vice Chair Shank 
Mr. Lemon 
Mrs. Lucas 

4



Ms. Nicholson 
Mr. Albano 
Ms. Bott 
 
Excused were: 
 
Mr. Scully 
Mr. Gabriel 
Mr. Hilton  

 
C Approval of Meeting Minutes 

 
1 MEETING MINUTES OF THE MAY 18, 2022 PLANNING AND LAND 

DEVELOPMENT REGULATION BOARD MEETING  
 

 
Pass 
Motion made to approve as presented by Vice Chairman Shank and 
seconded by Board Member Dodson-Lucas 

 
Approved - 6 - Chairman Clinton Smith, Board Member Sybil Dodson-Lucas, 
Board Member Charles Lemon, Board Member Suzanne Nicholson, Vice 
Chairman Sandra Shank, Board Member James Albano 

 
D Public Hearing 

 
2 GRAND RESERVE EAST, A SUBDIVISION MASTER PLAN, APPLICATION # 5097  

 
 

Mr. Ray Tyner, Deputy Chief Development Officer, introduced this agenda item 
and the property's annexation, rezoning and FLUM history.  Mr. Tyner also 
provided the PLDRB members with an explanation of a subdivision master plan, 
which he stated is generally a 35,000 ft. look at the project without all the 
technical details which will occur at the preliminary plat stage.  The subdivision 
master plan is followed by a preliminary plat and then a final plat.  He also 
introduced Ms. Estelle Lens, AICP, Planner, who gave a presentation which is 
attached to this record. 
 
Mr. Alex Acree, Matthews Design Group, representing the applicant gave a 
presentation which is attached to this record.  
 
Ms. Bott asked that the applicant include a school bus stop pad as they move 
forward with their project as there will be approximately 50 students added to the 
Flagler School System from this proposed development.  
 
Chair Smith asked if the northern entrance lines up with the driveway on the 
other side of the street.  Ms. Lens stated yes it looks like it does.  Mr. Acree 
stated yes the entrance does line up with the driveway as depicted on the 
presentation. 
 
Ms. Nicholson questioned the limited number of parking spaces for guests given 
the size of the development.  She also asked where the parking will be located 

5



for the recreation areas. Mr. Acree stated that there will be ample parking at the 
3 acre amenity space.  In regard to Ms. Nicholson's first question he stated that 
he will get with the developer and the home builder to see where they wish to put 
some additional parking throughout the site.  
 
Mr. Lemon asked if this will be a gated community.  Mr. Lance Jackson, Amherst 
Homes, answered no he doesn't think so. 
 
Vice Chair Shank asked if the proposed development will be age restricted and 
Mr. Jackson answered no. 
 
Mrs. Lucas asked if the project requires coordination with the City of Flagler 
Beach.  Mr. Acree answered no coordination with Flagler Beach is required but it 
does require coordination with Flagler County. 
 
Mr. Ken Atlee addressed the PLDRB regarding the design of the project, where 
he highlighted that the lots do not back up to other lots and he described the 
layout which includes preserves and wetlands. 
 
Chair Smith opened this item to public comment at 5:56pm and seeing no one 
approach the podium he closed this item to public comment at 5:57pm.  

 
Pass 
Motion made to approve as presented with the Development Order 
conditions by Vice Chairman Shank and seconded by Board Member 
Dodson-Lucas 

 
Approved - 6 - Chairman Clinton Smith, Board Member Sybil Dodson-Lucas, 
Board Member Charles Lemon, Board Member Suzanne Nicholson, Vice 
Chairman Sandra Shank, Board Member James Albano 

 
3 SEMINOLE POINTE REZONING-APPLICATION #5064  

 
 

Mr. Ray Tyner, Deputy Chief Development Officer, introduced this agenda item 
and the history of the rezoning on this property and he clarified that this zoning 
modification application is being presented to address lot lines to accommodate 
a potential shopping center. He also introduced Ms. Jordan Myers, CFM, 
Environmental Planner, who gave a presentation which is attached to this 
record. 
 
Mr. Vincent Sullivan, Chiumento Law Firm, representing the applicant addressed 
the PLDRB members and gave a presentation which is attached to this record. 
 
Mr. Albano asked if there will be an additional drive to the shopping center to 
augment the existing drive from Integra Woods which goes onto the property 
where the multifamily is proposed. Mr. Sullivan stated that the conceptual plan 
has two separate drives one for the commercial and one for the multifamily to 
avoid unnecessary trips onto US 1 or Seminole Woods Blvd.  
 
Mr. Albano asked what is proposed to be developed first the multifamily or the 
commercial property.  Mr. Sullivan stated that the multifamily would be 

6



developed first and then once these homes are occupied that will draw in the 
commercial tenants. 
 
Mrs. Lucas asked if there are plans to hire locally.  Mr. Sullivan stated that he 
doesn't believe they have looked into who will be doing the construction for this 
project. Mrs. Lucas asked, if as a general rule, does the applicant advertise in 
the local area for professionals and construction works for their projects.  Mr. 
Sullivan stated that we certainly can reach out to local contractors. 
 
Vice Chair Shank asked if there will be any impacts to the wetlands located on 
this property.  Mr. Sullivan stated that there will be some impacts to the 
wetlands.  As the engineering for the project is still underway the amount and 
extent of those impacts has not yet been determined.  Mr. Sullivan also stated 
that the applicant is working on a technical site plan at this time and they also 
have an environmental permit with St. Johns River Water Management District 
(SJRWMD).  
 
Chair Smith asked to clarify that the multifamily will be developed first.  Mr. 
Sullivan stated yes the multifamily that abuts to the Integra Woods Development 
will likely be the first portion to develop.  Then the question will be will the 
commercial be developed there or on lot 2. 
 
Chair Smith opened this item to public comment at 6:12pm and seeing no one 
approach the podium he closed this item to public comment at 6:13pm.  

 
Pass 
Motion made to Recommend Approval as it is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan by Board Member Lemon and seconded by Board 
Member Albano 

 
Approved - 6 - Chairman Clinton Smith, Board Member Sybil Dodson-Lucas, 
Board Member Charles Lemon, Board Member Suzanne Nicholson, Vice 
Chairman Sandra Shank, Board Member James Albano 

 
E Board Discussion and Staff Issues 

 
Irene Schaefer, Recording Secretary, reminded the PLDRB members of the 
upcoming June 22, 2022 Citizen Advisory Task Force (CATF) meeting.   Mr. 
Albano stated that he would not be able to make the CATF June 22nd meeting. 
Chair Smith stated that he will not be able to attend the July 20, 2022 PLDRB 
meeting.  

 
F Adjournment 

 
Motion made that the meeting be adjourned by Mr. Albano and the motion was 
seconded by Mrs. Lucas. The meeting was adjourned at 6:15PM. 
 
Respectfully Submitted by: 
Irene Schaefer, Recording Secretary  

 
Pass 

7



Motion made to approve  by Board Member Albano and seconded by 
Board Member Dodson-Lucas 

 
Approved - 6 - Chairman Clinton Smith, Board Member Sybil Dodson-Lucas, 
Board Member Charles Lemon, Board Member Suzanne Nicholson, Vice 
Chairman Sandra Shank, Board Member James Albano 

 

8



City of Palm Coast, Florida
Agenda Item

Agenda Date: August 17, 2022

Department COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT

Amount  

Division PLANNING Account 
#

 

Subject KINGS CROSSING STORAGE FACILITY RE-ESTABLISHED SPECIAL 
EXCEPTION, APPLICATION # 5173

Presenter: Jacqueline Gonzalez, Senior Planning Technician 

Background:
A request for a Special Exception in the General Commercial (COM-2) Zoning District to allow 
an Office Warehouse and Self-Storage in the General Commercial (COM-2) Zoning District was 
approved by Planning Land Development and Regulation Board (PLDRB) on October 16, 2019, 
meeting. 
The PLDRB approved a Site Plan Development Order on February 16, 2022 for an Office 
Warehouse and Self-Storage consisting of two buildings on 35.937 +/- acres. 

The applicant has consistently been working on the project and exhausted all admirative 
extensions as per the Special Exception Development Order issued by PLDRB on October 16, 
2019.  The Applicant submitted a request to re-establish the special exception. Staff’s analysis 
has determined that the request meets the Special Exception requirements of the LDC Section 
2.05 and Section 2.07 as outlined in the staff report. 

Recommended Action:
Staff recommends that the Planning and Land Development Regulation Board (PLDRB) 
approve the extension of the Special Exception re-establishing for Warehouses and Self-
Storage within General Commercial (COM-2) zoning district subject application # 5173 subject 
to the following:
The Building Permit will not be released until the following comments are addressed and 
signed off on by City Staff:
1. Screening landscape will need to be planted to meet height specifications from finished 
parking lot grade, so if being planted on sloped areas material may need to be upsized.
2. Where boats or recreational vehicles are commercially stored outside, they shall only be 
stored on pavement located behind buildings or preserved wooded areas, so they are generally 
hidden from the public rights-of-way, unless specifically permitted by code.
3. Proposed lot 3 will require utility infrastructure improvements to cross Lots 1& 2. This site will 
require Utility Agreements.

 

9



 

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
Project Name 

Special Exception 
Planning and Land Development Regulation Board 

STAFF REPORT  
August 17, 2022 

OVERVIEW 

Application 
Project Name 

5173 
Kings Crossing Storage Facility 

Applicant: Victor Silva  
Property 
Description: 

 
Lying west of Old Kings Rd (exc. part in Palm Coast subdivision & 11.67 
ac in Old Kings Rd Professional Park North subdivision) OR 553 PG 1539 
part #616 OR 1527 Pg. 81  

 

Property Owner:   Old Kings Rd Vest LLC 
FLUM 
designation:   

Mixed Use and Conservation 

Zoning 
designation: 

General Commercial (COM-2) 

Current Use: Vacant 
Property ID:    01-11-30-0000-01010-0000 
Location: Interstate 95 and Old Kings Rd N 
Requested 
Action: 

Re- Establish expired application 3989 Special Exception for a 
Warehouses and Self-Storage as required in General Commercial (COM-
2) zoning 

  
ANALYSIS 

REQUESTED ACTION 

 

Approve extension for the Special Exception to allow Office Warehousing and Self-Storage within 
General Commercial (COM-2) zoning district situated between Interstate 95 and Old Kings Rd N, 
subject to the conditions set forth on the DO to include the following special conditions: 

1 Screening landscape will need to be planted to meet height specifications from finished 
parking lot grade, so if being planted on sloped areas material may need to be upsized. 

2. Where boats or recreational vehicles are commercially stored outside, they shall only be 
stored on pavement located behind buildings or preserved wooded areas so they are generally 
hidden from the public rights-of-way, unless specifically permitted by code. 

10



  
  Application # 5173 
 

  
   

3. Proposed lot 3 will require utility infrastructure improvements to cross Lots 1& 2. This site will 
require Utility Agreements. 

 

BACKGROUND/SITE HISTORY 

 

Section 3.03.02 of the City Code identifies allowable uses within nonresidential and mixed use 
districts.  Table 3-4 lists Mini Warehouses, Office Warehouses and Self-Storage as a specific use 
type within the warehousing category.  Warehouses and Self-Storage is permitted with Special 
Exception approval within the General Commercial (COM-2) district.   Warehouses and Self-
Storage is permitted as a matter of right within the COM-3 district.   

The subject property, measuring approximately 36.0 acres, is situated between I-95 and Old 
Kings Road.  The onsite floodway and associated floodplain fringe (wetlands) is part of the Big 
Mulberry Branch name system and conveys significant amount of drainage from west of I-95 
across the site, neighboring branch to the east and eventually into College Waterway, a 
saltwater canal.   

On October 16, 2019 the Planning Land and Development Regulation Board approved the Special 

Exception Application 3989 to allow the Office Warehouses and Self-Storage use with conditions to be 

completed during the Technical Site Plan approval process.  The applicant was issued a technical site 

plan Development Order in February of 2022 during which the applicant has exhausted their limit of 

administrative extensions to the special exceptions. 

 

LAND USE AND ZONING INFORMATION 

 

USE SUMMARY TABLE: 

CATEGORY: EXISTING: PROPOSED: 

Future Land Use Map 
(FLUM) Mixed Use & Conservation No change proposed 

Zoning District 
General Commercial (COM-
2) No change proposed 

Overlay District None No change proposed 

Use  Vacant Warehouses and Self-Storage 

Acreage  35.93 acres No change proposed 

Primary Access Old Kings Road No change proposed 

11



  
  Application # 5173 
 

  
   

Unit Size Vacant 

Office Building – 10,080 sf                           
Storage Bldg. A – 33,150 sf                            
Storage Bldg. B – 57,384 sf (84 
spaces)                          
Storage Bldg. C - 33,160 sf (57 
spaces)                                   
Open Storage D – 24,395 sf 
(55 spaces) 

 

SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 

LOCATION FLUM ZONING 
NORTH Residential Duplex, Public-Semi Public, 

SFR-2 and 3 
SOUTH Mixed Use General Commercial (COM-

2)  
EAST Residential and Conservation Duplex, SFR-2, 3 and 4, 

Preservation 
WEST Interstate 95 Interstate 95 

 

 

ANALYSIS BASED ON UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE CHAPTER 2 SECTION 
2.05.05 

   

The Unified Land Development Code, Chapter 2, and Part II, Section 2.05.05 states: When 
reviewing a development order application, the approval authority shall determine whether 
sufficient factual data was presented in order to render a decision. The decision to issue a 
development order shall be based upon the following, including but not limited to: 

A. The proposed development must not be in conflict with or contrary to the public interest; 

Planning Staff Finding: The proposed Mini Warehouses, Office Warehouses and Self-Storage 
is not inconsistent with the surrounding office, retail, service-related character of the Old Kings 
Road mixed use corridor.  

If approved, the project must comply with all applicable requirements of the City’s LDC, 
Comprehensive Plan Building and Fire Codes. In addition, the applicant has secured a Technical 
Site Plan approval to proceed. 

B. The proposed development must be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and the 
provisions of this LDC; 

Planning Staff Finding: The request is consistent with the following objectives and policies of 
the Comprehensive Plan.   

• Chapter 1 Future Land Use Element:  

12



  
  Application # 5173 
 

  
   

-Objective 1.1.4 - Promote compact and contiguous development, a mixture of land uses, 
and discourage urban sprawl 

-Policy 1.1.4.5 – Land use patterns will be required to be efficient and not 
disproportionately increase the cost of providing and maintaining public facilities, as well 
as providing housing and transportation strategies that will foster energy conservation. 

Planning Staff Findings: The mixed of uses offers the residents and visitors to Palm 
Coast an array of retail, professional offices, and personal services opportunities and 
uses. The proposed use is consistent with this range of commercial development.    

-Goal 1.4 – Economic Development – Pursue an economic development program to 
expand (the City’s) economic base and to provide adequate, diverse employment and 
business opportunities. 

-Objective 1.4.2 – Create Employment Centers and Jobs 

-Policy 1.4.2.1 The City shall provide an appropriate balance of commercial; retail, office, 
and industrial land uses on the FLUM to balance jobs and housing. 

Planning Staff Findings: The site is located in Mixed Use FLUM designation that 
represents existing and future mixed-use corridors and employment centers throughout 
the City.  This designation is intended to provide general retail, professional services and 
offices.  The mixed use designation also offers opportunities for residents to work, shop, 
and perform a range of daily activities near to home or work within reasonably close 
proximity to residential dwellings. 

Small business, along with a mix of professional services and development, are an 
economic driver for local jobs and a favorable business climate. 

 C. The proposed development must not impose a significant financial liability or hardship 
for the City; 

Planning Staff Findings: The applicant is responsible for complying with applicable land 
development and building codes related to improvements. 

Should the applicant be granted a Special Exception, no significant financial liability or 
hardship will be created for the City.   

• Chapter 2-Transportation Element:  
Staff Findings: The proposed location is intended for office and storage use.  All   
transportation impacts were reviewed as part of a Technical Site Plan. 

•    Chapter 5-Infrastructure (Water, Sewer, Drainage, Aquifer Recharge, Waste 
Disposal) Element:   
Staff Findings: Water and sewer is provided by the City of Palm Coast. The City 
does not anticipate providing any upgrades to its system in order to provide service 
for the Special Exception. 
 
Stormwater and drainage will be addressed as part of a Technical Site Plan 
approval. The proposed conceptual plan depicts a stormwater and detention   

13



  
  Application # 5173 
 

  
   

D. The proposed development must not create an unreasonable hazard, or nuisance, or constitute 
a threat to the general health, welfare, or safety of the City’s inhabitants; 

Staff Finding:    The proposed development poses no unreasonable hazard, nuisance, nor does 
it constitute a threat to the general health, welfare, or safety of the City’s inhabitants. All 
improvements will be newly constructed and/or developed in compliance with the relevant ULDC, 
Building Code and other review agency requirements. 

E. The proposed development must comply with all other applicable local, state and federal laws, 
statutes, ordinances, regulations, or codes; 

Planning Staff Finding: Any business on-site must comply with the requirements of all other 
applicable local, state and federal laws, statutes, ordinances, regulations and codes.  

 

ANALYSIS BASED ON UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE CHAPTER 2 SECTION 
2.07.03  

  

The Unified Land Development Code, Chapter 2, Part II, Sec. 2.07.03 states: “No application for 
a special exception use shall be approved unless the Planning and Land Development Regulation 
Board finds that the request meets the findings listed in Subsection 2.05.05 and the following: ” 

A. Is consistent with the specific requirements for that particular use as set forth in this 
LDC; 
 

Planning Staff Finding:  The proposed location is situated between Old Kings Road 
N and Interstate 95.  Approval of this special exception will allow a new business to be 
constructed offering boats and RV/Storage. 

Meets the concurrency requirements of this LDC; 

Planning Staff Finding: The property is currently vacant. Concurrency requirements 
have been reviewed as part of a Technical Site Plan. 

B. Is compatible with the surrounding neighborhoods and promotes the value of surrounding 
land, structures or buildings.   
 
Planning Staff Finding: The proposed concept plan demonstrates a level of functionality 
with respect to meeting the City’s Development Code.  Development of this site is meets 
all applicable ULDC requirements.  Site Plan was approved by PLDRB in February of 
2022.  
 

a. Compatibility shall be further reviewed in light of the following components: 

 

Architectural design; 
 

The approved site plan is consistent with Chapter 
13 of the ULDC. The PLDRB approved the 
Technical Site Plan in February 2022. 

14



  
  Application # 5173 
 

  
   

Fencing and screening, 
landscaping; 
 

The subject site complies with the City’s 
landscape requirements in Chapter 11 of the 
ULDC.  The PLDRB approved the Technical Site 
Plan in February 2022. 

Noise reduction, sign and light 
control; 

 
 

The subject site complies with the City’s 
landscape requirements in Chapter 11 of the LDC 
to minimize noise and control lighting. Signage will 
comply with Chapter 12 of the LDC.  The PLDRB 
approved the Technical Site Plan in February 
2022. 

Storm drainage, sanitation 
collection; 
 

Storm drainage was addressed during site plan 
review.   The PLDRB approved the Technical Site 
Plan in February 2022. 

Police and fire protection; 
 

The City does not provide police services so no 
review was made.  Fire standards was approved 
as part of the Technical Site Plan review. The 
PLDRB approved the Technical Site Plan in 
February 2022. 

On and off-site traffic control This is an existing professional retail and office 
with ample parking spaces, no additional on and 
off-site transportation impacts are anticipated.  

Off-street parking and loading; and 
 

Primary access to the site is via Old Kings Rd.  
The onsite parking standards meet the 
requirements of Chapter 5 of the ULDC.   The 
PLDRB approved the Technical Site Plan in 
February 2022. 

 

Summary Finding: Old Kings Rd is a suitable location for businesses and warehousing. The 
PLDRB previously approved the Kings Crossing Special Exception in October 2019.  The 
applicant has met all the previous condition in the special exception development by Technical 
Site Plan which was approved by in February 2022 PLDRB. In summary the Special Exception 
has expired, and the applicant is requesting an extension. 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

Unified Land Development Code Chapter 2, Part II, Section 2.07 requires only that the applicant 
notify adjacent property owners of the PLDRB meeting date 14 days in advance of the public 
hearing.  The required letter notifications to the adjacent property owners were sent via Certified 
Mail on or before August 4, 2022. Neither the ULDC nor state law requires signs to be posted, or 
newspaper ads to be placed. Additionally, no Neighborhood Meeting is required for Special 
Exception applications.  

To date, the Planning Division has received one inquiry from adjacent members of the public 
regarding this application. 

 

15



  
  Application # 5173 
 

  
   

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends that the Planning and Land Development Regulation Board (PLDRB) approve 
the extension of the Special Exception re-establishing for Warehouses and Self-Storage within 
General Commercial (COM-2) zoning district subject application # 5173 subject to the following: 

The Building Permit will not be released until the following comments are addressed and 
signed off on by City Staff: 

1. Screening landscape will need to be planted to meet height specifications from finished 
parking lot grade, so if being planted on sloped areas material may need to be upsized. 

2. Where boats or recreational vehicles are commercially stored outside, they shall only be 
stored on pavement located behind buildings or preserved wooded areas, so they are generally 
hidden from the public rights-of-way, unless specifically permitted by code. 

3. Proposed lot 3 will require utility infrastructure improvements to cross Lots 1& 2. This site will 
require Utility Agreements. 

 

16



Prepared By:        Reserved for Recording nformation: 
   
Community Development Department 
City of Palm Coast 
160 Lake Avenue – Suite 135 
Palm Coast, FL 32164 
            
Return To: 
City Clerk 
City of Palm Coast 
160 Lake Avenue – Suite 225 
Palm Coast, FL 32164 
 
 

CITY OF PALM COAST 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION OTHER 
DEVELOPMENT ORDER APPROVAL 

KINGS CROSSING STORAGE FACILITY 
 

 On 08/17/2022, the City of Palm Coast issued this Development Order relating to and 

touching and concerning the following described property: 
Section 01, Block 01010, Lot 0000, Tax Parcel ID No.: 01-11-30-0000-01010-0000, located 

at 125 old Kings Road, S; Palm Coast, FL 32164 
(The afore described property description has been provided to the City of Palm Coast by the 

owner of the afore described property.) 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

Property Owner:   VICTOR SILVA 
     7 WHITEHALL COURT 

    FLAGLER BEACH, FL 32136 
 

Project Name:  KINGS CROSSING STORAGE FACILITY 
 Project No.:   2019050102 

Application Type:  SPECIAL EXCEPTION OTHER 
Application No.   5173 

 
Requested Development Approval:  SPECIAL EXCEPTION TO RE-ESTABLISH 
EXPIRED APPLICATION 3989 SPECIAL EXCEPTION TO ALLOW AN OFFICE 
WAREHOUSE AND SELF STORAGE .  

17



Parcel Acreage: 35.94 
Parcel No.:01-11-30-0000-01010-0000 
Zoning Classification: GENERAL COMMERCIAL (COM-2) 

 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
  The Development Approval sought is consistent with the City of Palm Coast 

Comprehensive Plan and will be developed consistent with and in compliance to applicable 

land development regulations and all other applicable regulations and ordinances as set forth 

in the Code of Ordinances of the City of Palm Coast. 

  The Owners have expressly agreed to be bound by and subject to the development 

conditions and commitments stated below and have covenanted and agreed to have such 

conditions and commitments run with, follow, and perpetually burden the afore described 

property. 

 

ORDER 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED AND AGREED THAT: 

  (1) The afore mentioned application for Development Approval is GRANTED. 

  (2) All development of the property shall fully comply with all of the codes and 

ordinances in effect in the City of Palm Coast at the time of issuance of a development order 

and/or development permit, including but not limited to, all impact fee ordinances. 

  (3) The conditions upon this development approval and the commitment made as 

to this development approval, which have been accepted by and agreed to by the Owner of 

the property is as follows: 
 a.  The Development Order shall be signed by the applicant within 30 days from the date 
of the PLDRB meeting in which the approval occurred.  Should the applicant fail to evidence 
the agreement to each and every condition in the Development Order by failing to sign such 
Development Order, then it shall become null and void.  If the applicant requests a special 
exception in the future, applicant must file a new application in accordance with the Unified 
Land Development Code. 
b.  The Special Exception shall remain valid until August 17, 2023, or development 
commences, whichever occurs first. If the development fails to commence prior to August 17, 
2023, the Land Use Administrator may extend the special exception for up to an additional 

18



12-month period of time if the applicant can demonstrate good faith reliance. If good faith 
reliance is not demonstrated, the special exception will expire and the applicant shall submit 
for a new Special Exception request. 
c. Special Exceptions are only use approvals. However, a development plan, which may 
include a floor plan, shall be submitted with the application and shall be valid only for the 
location and area shown. Any further required approvals, such as but not limited to signage, 
must be obtained pursuant to the Unified Land Development Code.   
d.  Failure to comply with any of the conditions of approval for the subject property at any 
time may result in revocation of the Special Exception:  
e. A requirement of the development to conform with the standards of the Unified Land 
Development Code at the time of the finding of noncompliance, or the addition or modification 
of conditions reasonably related to the failure to comply with existing conditions, the City can  
refer the issue to Code Enforcement. 
f. If the special exception use is discontinued or abandoned for 6 consecutive months, 
the development order approving the special exception shall expire and shall not be 
re-established or resumed without obtaining a Special Exception in accordance with the 
requirements established in the Unified Land Development Code.  
g. Any subsequent use in the same location shall be in conformance with the Unified Land 
Development Code. 
h.  The Special Exception shall comply with all State requirements.  

 (4) This Development Order touches and concerns the afore described property 

and the conditions, commitments and provisions of this Development Order shall perpetually 

burden, run with and follow the said property and be a servitude upon and binding upon said 

property unless released in whole or in part by action of the City of Palm Coast by virtue of a 

document of equal dignity herewith.  The Owners have expressly covenanted and agreed to 

this provision and all other terms and provisions of this Development Order. 

 (5) The terms and provisions of this Order are not severable and in the event any 

portion of this Development Order shall be found to be invalid or illegal then the entire 

Development Order shall be null and void. 

  

As approved and authorized for execution by the Planning and Land Development 
Regulation Board (PLDRB) of the City of Palm Coast, at their regularly scheduled 
meeting of August 17, 2022. 

19



Attest:  City Of Palm Coast, Florida 

_________________________________ ________________________________ 

Irene Schaefer, Recording Secretary  Clint Smith, Chairperson 

__Sign and Return 

20



Development Order Affidavit 
OWNER'S CONSENT AND COVENANT: 

    Project Name: KINGS CROSSING STORAGE FACILITY 
    Application Type: SPECIAL EXCEPTION OTHER 
    Application No.: 5173 
     
 COMES NOW, VICTOR SILVA, the Owner on behalf of itself and its successors, assigns and 

transferees of any nature, whatsoever, and consents to and agrees with the covenants to perform and 

fully abide by the provisions, terms, and conditions, and commitments set forth in this Development 

Order. Affiant states that he/she accepts the findings, as outlined in this Development Order, and 

further states that he/she has neither paid nor promised any person, firm or corporation any discount, 

rebate, commission, or refund for the purpose of securing the said Development Order for KINGS 

CROSSING STORAGE FACILITY: 

 

ATTEST:      VICTOR SILVA 
        7 WHITEHALL COURT 

        FLAGLER BEACH, FL  32136 

 

____________________________  _________________________________ 

Attesting Corporate Official    Authorized Signer 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF _________________ 

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me, by means of _ physical presence or  _ 

online notarization, this _____ day of _________________, 2022, by 

___________________________ of VICTOR SILVA who is personally known to me or has produced  

______________ (type of identification) as identification and did/did not take an oath. 

 

  WITNESS my hand and official seal in the County and State last aforesaid this _____ day of 

________________________, 2022. 

       _______________________________ 

       Notary Public 

21



OKR Special Exception Aerial-Distant 

1 inch = 2,000 feet Map Provided By: Planning Division ® 

OLD KINGS 

PALM COAST 

BELLE TERRE 

PALM
HARBOR 

MATANZAS WOODS 

PALM COAST 
PALM COAST 

 

 

 

 

 

  

        
22



OKR Special Exception- Aerial Close 

95 

FA
RM

SW
OR

TH
 

FRONTIER 

95 

OLD KINGS 
 

        1 inch = 500 feet Map Provided By: Planning Division ® 23



Coastal High Hazard Area InstitutionalFLUM 1 inch = 500 feetConservation Mixed Use CATEGORY 
Canals Greenbelt Residential ® 

OKR Special Exception Future Land Use Map 

ided By: Planning DiMap Prov vision 

95 

FA
RM

SW
OR

TH
 

FRONTIER 

95 

OLD KINGS 
 

   
 

    

    
Legend 

24



95

FA
RM

SW
O

RT
H

FRONTIER

95

O
LD KING

S

Legend
Zoning
NewZone

COM-1

COM-2

DPX

EST-1

MFR-1

PRS

PSP

SFR-1

SFR-2

SFR-3

SFR-4

OKR Special Exception Zoning Map

®
Map Provided By: Planning Division

1 inch = 500 feet
25



26



27



NORTHEAST PERSPECTIVE SOUTHEAST PERSPECTIVE 

ROOF PERSPECTIVE 

NORTHWEST PERSPECTIVE 

ZTE 

350ECrownPoint Rd 
suneJ060 

wp~1:'.~r;t;~3 ~-!:~!7 

Info@ 
rop 1~b u1ldmgwlu11 00, .,orn 

[l,\,E 051 11 12021 
DPA'IMIN 

1 f>E_AYITl<:fflr'..!':ACO"""'->ITS-
2 ELCCHKJ<l.l'l:RIITCOLILC'1TS=1 

ERSPECTIVE 
BLDG. A 

SOUTHWEST PERSPECTIVE 

28



™'-SOOCUME"1'1,JOQRTHEDESIGS 
CONCEPTSE<PRESSEDHEREINARE THE 
F'ROPERTYOfKEESEEASSOC"'TESAflD 
.ol.la:IGKTSOfOll'N(RSflll',l'ICLWNG 

COP'YRIGIITOf lNTEll£CTlJALPROF'ERTV 
AAE RESEr<\IEOTl<E.REP>ll:ODUCTOOS, 
COPYINO,ORUSEOfnllSOOCUMENT 
~1\EOE-CO>ICEPT ll,fT>IOl/fSOUTHWEST PERSPECTIVE SOUTHEAST PERSPECTIVE lHEWRITTENCOOSENT OfKE ESEE 

/.SSOC"'TESISSTR!C TLYl>PO!ilBITEONIO 
""0T'ECTEOBYll'!ITEOSTUES#ID 

ZTE 

350ECrownPoint Rd 
suneJ060 

wp~1:'.~r;t;~3~-!:~!7 

Info@ 
rop 1~b u1ldmgwlu1100, .,orn 

ROOF PERSPECTIVE 

[l,\,E 051 11 12021 
DPA'IMIN 

1 f>E_AYITl<:fflr'..!':ACO"""'->ITS-
2 ELECHKJ<l.l'l:RIITCOLILC'1TS=1 

NORTHWEST PERSPECTIVE NORTHEAST PERSPECTIVE 

29



city of 

M V\ST 

GENERAL - APPLICATION 

DATE7/18/22 
APPUCATI0NÎYPE SPECIAL EXCEPTION 

PR0JECT NAME 

LOCATION OF SUBJECT PRO PERTY 
( PHYSICALADDRESS) 

PR0PERTY APPRAISER'S 
PARCEL NUMBER 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

SUBDIVISION NAME 

SECTION 101 
PR0PERTY ACRES 

FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP DESIGNATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT 

C0MMUNITY PANEL NUMBER 

FLOOD ZONE 

PRESENT USE OF PRO PERTY 

Kings Crossing 

0051.28 ACRES ALL L YING WEST OF 0 

01-11-30-0000-0101 0-0000

35.937 AC ALL L YING WEST OF OLD KINGS RD (EXC PART IN PALM COAST SUBD & 11.67 AC IN OLD 

1 
35.94 

120684 

BLOCK j 01010 1 LOT 0000 
PROPERTY SQ FT 1565546 

ExlSTING ZONE DISTRICT 

1 MAP PANEL DATE 06/06/2018 

DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST / PROPOS ED DEVEL0PMENT (MAY ATTACH ADDm0NAL SHEETS) 

The project site is currently vacant and wooded, with a large portion lying within a conservation 
easement. Within the uplands of the site, we are proposing the site to be developed with a portion 
being self-storage and RV/trailer parking and the other portion being commercial offices. 

PR0P0SED NUMBER OF LOTS IS ÎHERE ExlSTING M0RTGAGE? No 

COPC RECEIVED 5/29/2019 5·40·03 PM 

30



- --- - - - ---- - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - --

OWNER 

Name: Victor Silva
Mailing Address: 7 Whitehall Court Flagler beach , FL 32136
Phone Number:(386)569-1918

MORTGAGE HOLDER 

Name: 

Mailing Address: 

Phone Number: 

E-mail Address:

A'RCHITECT 

Name: 
Mailing Address: 

Phone Number: 
E-mail Address:

SURVEYOR 

Name: 

Mailing Address: 

Phone Number: 

E-mail Address:

ATTORNEY 

Name: 

Mailing Address: 

Phone Number: 

E-mail Address:

city of 

M ST 

APPUCANT / AGENT 
Name:vlCTOR SILVA
Mailing Address: 7 WHITEHALL COURT FLAGLER BEACH, FL 32136
Phone Number: (386) 569_1918
E-mail Address: VICTORANDSOFIA@GMAIL.COM

ENGINEER OR PROFESSIONAL 

Name: 

Mailing Address: 

Phone Number: 

E-mail Address:

ÎRAFFIC ENGINEER 

Name: 
Mailing Address: 

Phone Number: 
E-mail Address:

lANDSCAPEARCHITECT 

Name: 
Mailing Address: 

Phone Number: 

E-mail Address:

APPLICANT / OWNER'S AFFIDAVIT: 1 certify that all the foregoing information is accurate and that all work will 
be done in compliance with all applicable laws regulating construction and zoning 

APPLICANT / OWNER'S ELECTRONIC SUBMISSION STATEMENT: Under penalty of perjury, 1 declare 
that all the information contained in this development application is true and correct. By signing this Electronic 
Submission Form 1 consent to use electronic communications. electronic records and electron1c signatures 
rather than paper documents for the form(s) prov1ded on this web site I understand that my electronic signature 
is legally binding. as stated by 2016 Florida Statutes Tille XXXIX Chapter 668 Section 50 

Signature of Property Owner or Applicant 
1\ � -

Victor M. Silva ü h"0k 1\. )_ ..,_ � 
'\ � 

� 

,,

� 

I --
" 

� _,,..,..,-...._,_, ��1§GONlliEZ 
L��; MY COMMI ON# HH 088578
\�. -�/ EXPIRES: Feb ary 24, 2025 
·-::-r,��.:t·· Bonded Thru No bile Underwrlters 

31



NOTIFICATION AFFIDAVIT for VARIANCE / SPECIAL EXCEPTION 

COUNTY OF FLAGLER X 
STATE OF FLORI~ X 

Before me this~ day of-.,(.-Ll:::..::,.'-+--..;....:/_, 20i.2_ personally appeared 

______.ro-.:-...L.J...JIL....l:~-.wA-[..,__-___.:;...L_.;...l;.1)_.;...V_N~tf-:...:-.________ who after providing 

__Et l/_GelLJ --',lird'----..:;........~-,Q_)/J....___2)..,.Ki______U___ ___________ as identification and 

who 1 / ., did, _did not take an oath. and who being duly sworn, deposes and says as follows: 

"I have read and fully understand the provisions of this instrument." 

1. Each abutting property owner (as defined in the Unified Land Development Code) of the 
boundary lines of Application # 51 3 , has been mailed a letter by certified mail at least 
fourteen (14) calendar days before the hearing date notifying them of the date, time, and place 
of the ____, Planning & Land Development Regulation Board (PLORB) hearing; and 

2. No other documentation was provided in the envelope with the notification letter. 

-~.J:SignatureoRes-Party 

...::Dauid A . V'<\dL00.. 
Printed Name 

FL 32.(lO ,
' 

SUBFIENA KHADOO 
Notary Public, State of Florida 

Commission# GG 259537 
My comm. expires Sept. 17, 2022 

Si a ~f Person Taking Acknowledgement 

"?ll/b/lfJJA- (C:6-/-ftfJ~6 - SEAL 

Name of Acknowledger (Typed, Printed or Stamped) 

This document, once executed, must be returned to a Land Development Technician In the City 
ot Palm Coast Community Development Department at least seven (7) days prior to the hearing 
date. Failure to provide document by that time will result In the application not being placed on 
the agenda for a public hearing. 

32



FLAGLER STORAGE GROUP LLC 
PO BOX 1486 
BUNNELL FL, 32110 

ORLAND{) FL 328 

3 t'.,tnc;: 2022 PM 4 IL 

Jo cqve 'h-<'e 6oD 2-0 \ e_-z.. 
~n \OV <f)\l\ Y\n, "'~ Te.chn \ c10D 

\·60 Lb.\i:e. Au enve 
Pa\m Coas-4-1 FL ( 3Zlbl.t 

11132 i E:4•-2::.·li::c,99 I1JI 11,11 1l1 11 ,, Ill ,I 11I JIil, 111111,111! 11Ill 1, ,,,1, 11111/I 11 1 
~' 

33



1(,0 L.-l~ -Awnw; 
Community Development Department P.,1lrn Ctr,hl, H 32164 
Planning Divi,ion 3&>-~-3,3{, 

July 21, 2022 

RE: Request for Special Exception; Application No. 5173 

Dear Neighboring Property Owner, 

The Community Development Department, in accordance with Section 2.05.03 of the City of Palm Coast 
Unified Land Development Code herein advises you that: 

A request for a Special Exception to allow Office Warehouse and Self Storage has been made by 
VICTOR SILVA of Palm Coast Section 01, Block 01010, Lot 0000, Tax Parcel ID No.: 
01-11-30-0000-01010-0000, located at 125 old Kings Road, S; Palm Coast, FL 32164. 

This Special Exception request is to be heard before the Planning and Land Development Regulation 
Board (PLDRB). You are hereby notified that a hybrid public hearing, required by law, will be held at the 
Palm Coast City Hall Community Wing, 160 Lake Avenue, Palm Coast, Florida, on Wednesday, August 
17, 2022, beginning at 5:30 pm or as soon thereafter as possible. 

You are welcome to attend and express your opinion or place concerns in writing and email them to 
PLDRB@palmcoastgov.com. The e-mail should indicate that they are intended for public participation 
and may be submitted up until 5 pm the day before the meeting. The City reserves the right to redact or 
reject Documentary Evidence containing obscene material or material that is confidential pursuant to 
state law. 

Cordially, 

JACQUELINE GONZALEZ 
Project Manager 

NOTE: Pursuant to Section 286.0105 of Florida Statutes the City of Palm Coast Community Development 
Department hereby notifies all interested persons that if a person decides to appeal any decision made by the PLDRB 
with respect to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim 
record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based. 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing assistance to participate in these 
proceedings should contact City Clerk's Office at 386-986-3713 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. To obtain the 
decision of this hearing, please contact the Planning Division the day after the above public hearing during the 
afternoon. 

p.ilnicoa~tgo\" corn 

page 1 of 1 

34



(..) 
.J 
.J 
a.. ::, 
0 
0:: 
(.'.) 
w 
(.'.)
<( 
0:: 

(!) 
Cl) 
0:: ..... 
w >< 
.J(.'.) O co 
::i O 
LL Q.. 

0 ..... 
..... 

_j 
LL 
.J 
.J 

5
z w 

CO 

rn rn 
::r 
::r 

I-
(j')er rn 

IT' ~w 
..a o=> 

..J> 
<( <(
O.w 
LL~ 

ru 
I"- 0 ::i 
ru ~o-cor-'I (.) ......ru 
I"-

-.;t" co ...... 
N 
C") 

_J 
LL 

i-:-
(j') 
<( 
0 
(.) 

_J 
<( 
0. 

----

-·-

·--
.,.., 
•r•l 
(:)::c 
r·.. 
•:u) 

•::!' 
(\J 
ff] 
:····•,I 
tii 
•:••! 
(\! 
(i'j 

35



-------------------------------

U.S. Postal Service'" 
CERTIFIED MAIL• RECEIPT 
Domestic Mall Only 

 

E 

U.S. Postal Service'" 
CERTIFIED MAIL®RECEIPT 
Domestic Mail Only 

PostmaJ1< 
Here 

U.S. Postal Service'" 
CERTIFIED MAIL®RECEIPT 
Domestic Mall Only 

ru 
I"'- 1~.,..,,....=~~ =----,------- -"71 
ru 
,.., 
ru 
I"'-

Here 

... --------·---
...........................-.. 

U.S. Postal Service"' 
CERTIFIED MAIL• RECEIPT 
Domestic Mall Only 

; 11 • I • 

. ·~·-~.-.-----•a-~1!'~.....U.S. Postal Service'" · · ·:..,.•-.t~ Jri>.'•~ 
CERTIFIED MAIL®RECEIPT · r' 

lJ1 Domestic Mall Only · • 
.Jl,.., 

OF 
.::r Mall fee 
er 
.Jl ~"§ivlc:esU~~ 

O c.ti11oc1Ma1 

O IWISiO'""n 
Postage 

ru s 

5 

~~~~ 

fi:;yo..-taJiDPom=ue=•n;r,F=a'77=---~..,_..::::......i. 

•. ; 

,.., 1&iiiftr.~~~n.7 --7'':,;~ ~ ;z:...~----, 
ru . . .J . .u : 

0. ,VO • • -- · ·-· ······ 
!"'-

U.S. Postal Service'" 
CERTIFIED MAIL®RECEIPT,.., Domestic Mall Only

lJ1 
lJ1,.., 

Qc..ftod Mol 
D 0'6JI.SV-

 
Polllge 

ru sh~-__,..,,_;::....:..~~....,.:::::,,,,,=rI"'- Total oatageand 

~CfJ;_::·· 

36



rr, 

~~--
CERTIFIED. MAile RECEIPT · 
Domestic Mall Only". i ~- \ . . ' .,n,;t:p l . • 

U.S. Postal Service'" 
CJ CERTIFIED MAile RECEIPT 

Domestic Mall Only.-=t 
rr, 

_ 

_ 

::r 

..................______________ 

---------------............._________ 

U.S. Postal Service'" 
CERTIFIED MAIL~ RECEIPT 

l"- Domestic Mail Only 1.11 
l"-
1"-
.-=t 

 

lh.:nc::d:::-=k~~~----::-- t--'i. 
ru 
.-=t 
ru 

I"-

.-=t 
l"-
::r 
::r 

~---~~ -rrr=----...~~Y---:-:--.-- -:-:-7--:""'t, 

-Her1I 

::r 
::r 

l'-
ru 
rr, 
::r 

er 
rr, 
cr 
..D tr.;,~=.rl~-E:=-':=c---..:.......J-

o-.... 
CJ oc.n.... 

Po.irnark 
Her9 

-~ ----------------------

37



l"-
.--'l 

~===.::=:;-.::~~=== =-! 
ru 
I"- rTotil'iioiiiiiiieancl"r..~:"N:~;;;:;::::::::;;r"ru 

§at,(To 

r~l 'J,•l~NoY.I. '/!ai.flo: 

U.S. Postal Service"' 
CERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT 

a- Domestic Mall Only 
Lrl 

·····•·••••••·••··••·•••·••·· 

·-·...···-···-········-·············-··-

U.S. Postal Service'" 
CERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT ..a 

Lil Domestic Mall Only 
Lr) 
::r 

a-m 11'~:;;;:;;iod:;;;.,M;::jalh,::::..c---,.-="--:......,=~.,-..=..,..._,=--='--___J 

·U.S. Postal Service™ 
CERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT 

co 
Lr) Domestic Mall Only 
m 
::r 

'=-==~i'ir.::c---=i..---='7"'-- ~Fh~,e:_=.~~- ..J 

lb====~ ~ ~~~' 
D 
D 
D 
D 

 
ru 
I"- ~b:===:n:.;;:;--¥i:r~ --~ ru 
.--'l ~ii'&'"--:;:-;n_.~ ~m-:--:--:~~~:.-,-----. 
ru 
D ··········· 
l"-

7 ··························· 

lts<hl~;;.m.-_;.tt,~ ~ ~..;;;..--1 

D 0~ 
D 0-. 

11( 

U.S. Postal Service'" 
CERTIFIED MAile RECEIPT m Domestic Mall Only::r 

..c 

.--'l 

~ fc.;;;;.;;;-;:i;rr~~.!!_.~~:....!.~~~~~~!.....!~-_J 
a-
..c ~~iiii;r;~~h~;;;;;_--{ 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D lp;,;.;;;-...::....;,;.c:=711:-::it~=-====J 
ru 

lf,;;;;ip;;= =:i'r.~H3-.:l"',,c,-.....-_:-~~:;;j,/ 
s 

l"-..c 
..a 
.--'l 

~ l=.:=,.i;::i-="----=-:-;:;i~e:....,~ ,_..,..-E;:.._~--~~=----' 

lb:=-ir.:=:=-...-.==:tf=,i::',~ ~~;:;,:r-
D 
D 
D 
D 
D f.;:::=::=_::_,.== ==::-=~9==s;;.;~=..,=_:::::..J1._ 
ru 

~:o;;;:tal;;;P ~g==-ean=d"'ees '---;;;;o::;ata =-"4-:-='bo"""""~C/-f'".......U 
.--'l SenlTo 

~f.)~i;;f-J;,9;1;}.,t1? mo.co..<Rr.tci.~.+.~-·············--
I"- t;ry.·s-,..2:1~-)/-,!es.t ...U.1±-b....5.t......fu?.-¼:..5.~-················ 

tJt t.v '{ o....-~ W (002 b . 

U.S. Postal Service'" - • 
CERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT 

co Domestic Mall Only ..a 
Lr1 
.--'l 

D 
D 
D 

D~~~~~~ ~ F===-1 

38



U.S. Postal Service"' 
CERTIFIED MAIL19 RECEIPT 

I"- Domestic Mall Only.-'! 
..n 
:r 

b~~~;__-=--..,..J.~---!:.~ =:?;::::,.__cc--2\:.~~-.J 
er 
..n tr.;;===-n=-:=JP ~===-' 

.... g o.-.sv-

1.11 
1.11 
..n 
:r 
er 
rn 
er 
..n 

Pootmal1< 
Here

U.S. Postal Service'". . - . 
CERTIFIED MAIL., RECEIPT 

U1 Domi,sl/c Mall Only ' ru 
1.11 
:r 

b......,.~d-~7"r-.-!:-=--=---=-==r---~----.J 
er 
..n ~.,..,..,.,~r.h,;cr..::::;;-;::::'::===:;:;i 

Pootmar1c 
HM 

11.J 
I"- f~r;;;;.~t&-lr--~ - ~ ~ 71 
ru 

U.S. Postal Service"' 
CERTIFIED MAIL., RECEIPT 

r-'l 
rn Domi,sl/c Mail Only 
..n 
:r 

"==~--"-___!,__!~I!::!A~L~ U~~E=---__J 
er 
..n 

 
ru 

r-'l 

. ......;;,;;..~ 
J:" L 

ra:'==----...L..lo'--'L~~~-----L----.f----, 

~===,,..,.,=1,-~~=---~=-l 

l~==-=~:=--tcH-.------1 

~~°P.~11ox~ 
e;~·s,.,."ti~Q!\~ L:a.ne,... 

() )"" o ~-\-

U.S. Postal Service'" -
CERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT 

1.11 Domestic Mail Onlyer 
:r 
:r 

 
0 0NMl!lgnolln 

r-'l 

u, 
:r 

 

D 
D 

39



U.S. Postal Service"' 
CERTIFIED MAIL• RECEIPTru 

n, Domestic Mail Only 
IJ') 
::r 

~~ii1---,,';..__;;__~~~~ =--=---1E~_J 
Ir 
..D lra;~:;;;;;;;.i,,:==-::~4~L- _J 

 .... 
 
 

..D 
ru 
::r 
::r 

lc.n:~iiir../i.mf-:---~rr~\-----"-____;__ _J 
Ir 
..ll ~===rl!e---dc~~ ,-,--4-.:....__J 

D 
D H"" 
D 

h;.';;;;;;;;=='-:::::::llr~~=-~~ 
ru 

ti:~iiiiiiPoe1ageiioiiio."aiid"T.-~ '-f;-=~ -==-.,,,..,.q 
.-=I S.,,, Ta 

Sitiiiiiiii. 1~:¼i ~°'-B····--···-··-···-··· ~ ~ - ··············· 
r-- .........c= -... , . .12Q:t~n~-~-ne._··-···········-

"'ty. """"'• ,., fb Im Cc,~~ A 32 l :>T _···-··········· 
• , II o I 

LJ") 

..D rn 
::r 
er 
rn 
er 
..D 

D POl!mal1< 
D Hero 
D 

Pr.wgo 
11.J $ r-- Totol M ru 

U.S. Postal Service'· 
CERTIFIED MAIL• RECEIPT er Domestic Mall Only ::r 

LJ") 

::r 

U.S. Postal Service'· 
CERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT 

ru 
r-- Domestic Mall Only 
rn 
::r 

-Hero 

::r 
::r 
::r 

g oc..-

-·11.J $ ri,= ==-=-=~....:,,,,,c::----1 
s 

r-'I s.,,tTa ,-..~~:r~~~?hl\ f:.lllao.o m-xh..l\n<\ct. H.-t:1.v 
I'- l::iti, ~lti,@ji.,,f.dl.v (2.0'I.~ 0 t".'.Uc... ••••.•• 

~1 , o CL 32 t3-=r 

40



U.S. Postal Service"' 
CERTIFIED MAIL~ RECEIPT 

.Jl 
,ll Domestic Mall Only 
'-

E 

Here 

U.S. Postal Service"' 
CERTIFIED MAIL®RECEIPT 
Domestic Mail Onlyf'-

~s=r...-0 .-----=:--~~:;.,i-.;;i-=-;, 7 ~ "5""""----7 
---········---------
-·········..···------

1..11 
::r 

~ ~:n;;:=;.;;;;~~~---71 
ru 

E 

Here 

U.S. Postal Service"' 
CERTIFIED MAIL®RECEIPT 

l"'- Domestic Mail OnlycO 
LI") 
::r 

& _ _ 'ttto ..,...,,,,.... 

' - -t-t.t--t-
'--t-F'I-J~
' - --+n~I-
•-----n:e-t-
$ 

Postage 
ru s 

lC~ota:;;l-s;o;;;•tag=•=-r-;---:--- 7:--f 
s 

::r 
IT" 
LI") 
::r 

POllml/li 
Hire 

-----·---------------------------· 1:1e..._______________________ 

U.5.:1 Postal' Service'" 
CERTiFiED•MAIL® RECEIPT ·-~ 

.Jl 
Domastic Mall Only ,; . . • _ . . _r -..,. 

::r 

 
ru '"s::-:ra=:;;;;.a,,;;;..-"~:-;--=-..._.c:::.. t,r 

s 

41



--

us 

Cl jg~~~~~~ ~==-IJ 
ru 

r,.;;;;;n;;;=~~ ;:::-'--=-~---71 

U.S. Postal Service"' 
::r CERTIFIED MAIL• RECEIPT 

Domestic Mall Onlyru 
...a 
::r 

ll'Z=v.l~-~...,,,,.~\--.;.__c::;,...c---~-==--==-----
cr 
...a ~~:ii&l'-7~~~ ~..;""j
D 
D 
D 
D 

D r.;:::;=-==.:::~p~.!.==;::=~ 
ru 
r- FT;;.,===;;c::;:~~"---'q=-------yru 

S.,,,)1 

~ ~ fob.. (X • .-""'........--r . ···-················· 

····-··········---------------------------

~ b=~ ~=----,,-,,fe-:.....,t-.c....;:...-=r~ F --'lr-;--~ 
cr 
...a 
D 
D 
D 

ru 
ru 

!Esm1;.;;;.:iiilcl'iii;:;.~ffi~ ;..;..;;.;~ 

i,g;;;:~~~~:=!.:~~::::;;:==r-
r- fh====f~~ ~!f'"'"_. 
.-'l F-::-:=--=::---','<;-"-~--:---'---:-..-.-,-----, 

+4 

•· ·~tZ~i~~b;;;;,1-x ----
l/37 

l"'-
[T" 
r-
.-'l 

Cl 
D 
Cl 
D 

~~=:=::=;~ :=,.~C:.'=.j~ 

U.S. Postal Service"' 
c(] CERTIFIED MAIL• RECEIPT 
::r Domestic Mail Only ...a 

.....J..l D...·····-············ 

D 0Aolum 
D He,. 
0 

Postage 

~ ===::..cc::=--=-------1 
ru 

$ 
,..:i Sant To \) 

s1rt>S1w~1~2S~;Q' ac, no ···--······························ 
r- c.,y. Sia:t 1 ~. Bo.., ldt.... .. f2.oc k __o..,. .......................... 

l l"Y\ Coo~ ~ L 32 1 3-=t-

u s Postal Service•· 
c·ERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT 

cO Domestic Mall Only
r'l 
U1 
::r 

er L,....,..,::Tr.::::--'--t~rr.~ ...-,--.;;;;~~~'------' rn 
~ 
CI 
Cl 
Cl 

Cl 

nJ 

r-'l 
nJ 
Cl 
['-

,~~lciiii1"-~..f:-~
T"""-=..'---

 
l!-===;;;;n:~-,-;-,~'7;:-'""--j 

42



..11 

::r 
USE 

Poatmai1< 
Here 

·······--.................._.___.._.................. 

): /J;, -································ 

U.S. Postal Service"' U.S. Postal Service'" 
CERTIFIED MAIL• RECEIPTer CERTIFIED MAIL., RECEIPTDomestic Mall Only ruM Domestic Mail Only::r 

::r ::r 

er 
rri (c;iif.ici~~,:i~;.;--7"'-=="""-.~,--:~ :__"--_ _ ___J 
er 

o 
ru 
l'-
ru 

lra~~;u;~~~===:.-1' 

~;;;;---'-.....,;__c_-\=?~=-====.y 

Poolmlllc... 

_l{i_fl/} . fl ·······- ---------··--····-···················· 

· .. dr',11 ·····························-··· 

U.S. Postal Service™ · 
rri CERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT 

Mrri 
cO Domestic Mail Only::r 

::r 

g:; 1,.-::;=~ =--:-::----.F-~ .,c....;;.--'-ir--=..._--;:=----" 
er 
..ll ~ ~=;-n,;...-;;-#-;.;;;;;;:;'!;";;=..-1 
D 
D 
D 
D 

D ~ = ===;;=:=n ii=~=j 
ru 

fi;;;;irlio.;.;;;iiincfF'i.;.;-;--- ~:o']r77'1 

M r,;=::..;;---;e7..-.:--"""7"":---;:----------, 
ru 
D ···········-··-···········-···· 
!'-

............................_.... .........________ 

..ll 
M 

Poo!ma'1< 
Here 

.£ytaf-c ·--··--·· 
·-------- --·-------

----- . - -:-- ,..~.,. ..,. .,. ..... u S Postal:Serv1ce, • ... 
CERTIFIED.MAIL., RECEIPT '_; 

cO Domestic Mall Only 
tr 
..ll 
M 

D 
D 
D 
0 

l,,Q~~~ ~ ~:=:!.!p F ==::=, 

M 
f1J 
CJ 
r-

Qrucon.J1_ll.q_r J. 

2,( {g ··- .. ... ------ ··-·······-

43



U.S. Postal Service'" U.S. Postal Service'" 
CERTIFIED MAIL• RECEIPT CERTIFIED MAile RECEIPT . 

I"'-
.-=! 

oc.n.. 

ru Dom~stlc Mail Only :::r Domestic Mail Only:::r :::r 

tmar1< 
Here 

.ttxr :=-----------------

U") 
.-=I 

U.S. Postal Service'" · 
CERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT 

U") Domestic Mall Onlyrr, 
I"'-
.-=! 

I 

44



City of Palm Coast, Florida
Agenda Item

Agenda Date: August 17, 2022

Department COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT

Amount  

Division PLANNING Account 
#

 

Subject PALM COST PARK – LOT 4, PARCEL 4 STORAGE FACILITY, A TECHNICAL 
SITE PLAN, APPLICATION # 4862

Presenter: Estelle Lens, Planner, AICP

Background :
Palm Coast Park – Lot 4, Parcel 4 Storage Facility is a Technical Site Plan application for a self-
storage facility that includes exterior storage of boats and recreational vehicles. The self-storage 
facility is proposed on a vacant 2.76 +/- acres on Matanzas Woods Parkway, 410 feet west of 
US Highway 1. The project’s Technical Site Plan shows it to be comprised of one 3-story self-
storage building totaling 90,000 square feet, housing 560 storage units, plus 34 exterior storage 
spaces for recreational vehicles and boats.  The project is considered a “Moderate” (Tier 2) 
development, based on the project’s total floor area of 90,000 square feet, which requires 
review and recommendation by City staff with final determination by the Planning and Land 
Development Regulation Board (PLDRB).  
The site is currently vacant and was previously cleared. The property is located within the Palm 
Coast Park Master Planned Development (MPD). Tracts 18 and 20 of the Palm Coast Park 
MPD were platted in 2009 which created 15 lots. Lot 4 was subsequently replatted in 2019 via 
the Palm Coast REH plat to create four Commercial Lots and a Stormwater Tract to be used for 
a master stormwater system. The subject property is parcel 4 of the Palm Coast REH plat. The 
adjacent, Parcel 3 of the Palm Coast REH plat has been improved as an Amoco gas station and 
convenience store. The subject site will share access with the Amoco station off W. Matanzas 
Woods Parkway.  
Staff finds that the proposed plan is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Land 
Development Code (LDC) and the Palm Coast Park MPD, for the requirements for approval of a 
Technical Site Plan Development Order including:

A. The proposed development must not be in conflict with or contrary to the public interest;
B. The proposed development must be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and the 

provisions of this LDC;
C. The proposed development must not impose a significant financial liability or hardship 

for the City;
D. The proposed development must not create an unreasonable hazard, or nuisance, or 

constitute a threat to the general health, welfare, or safety of the City's inhabitants; and
E. The proposed development must comply with all other applicable local, state, and 

federal laws, statutes, ordinances, regulations, or codes.

Recommended Action :
Staff recommends the PLDRB find this project in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan, the 
Land Development Code and the Palm Coast Park MPD and approve Palm Coast Park Lot 4, 

45



Parcel 4 Storage, Technical Site Plan Tier 2, Application No. 4862. 

 

46



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
PALM COAST PARK – LOT 4, PARCEL 4 STORAGE FACILITY 

TECHNICAL SITE PLAN - TIER 2 
PLANNING AND LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATION BOARD 

STAFF REPORT  
  AUGUST 17, 2022 

OVERVIEW   

Application Number: 4862 
Project Name: Palm Coast Park – Lot 4, Parcel 4 Storage Facility 
Applicant: CPH, Inc., Jason Kellogg 
Size of Subject Property: 2.76 +/- acres 
Property Owner: 
FLUM designation:   
Zoning designation: 
Current Use:      
Parcel ID #:        
Location: 

Palm Coast REH, LLC 
DRI – Mixed Use 
Master Planned Development (MPD) – Palm Coast Park 
 Vacant commercial land 

28-10-30-4295-00000-0040
105 Matanzas Woods Parkway, 410 feet west of US 1

 

REQUESTED ACTION 

The applicant has submitted a Technical Site Plan application for a self-storage facility that 
includes exterior storage of boats and recreational vehicles. The self-storage facility is proposed 
on a vacant 2.76 +/- acres on Matanzas Woods Parkway, 410 feet west of US Highway 1. The 
project’s Technical Site Plan shows it to be comprised of one 3-story self-storage building 
totaling 90,000 square feet, housing 560 storage units, plus 34 exterior storage spaces for 
recreational vehicles and boats.  The project is considered a “Moderate” (Tier 2) development, 
based on the project’s total floor area of 90,000 square feet, which requires review and 
recommendation by City staff with final determination by the Planning and Land Development 
Regulation Board (PLDRB).   

BACKGROUND/SITE HISTORY 

47

ISchaefer
Cross-Out



                                                                                                                                                              Application #4862 

2 
 

Palm Coast REH, LLC purchased the subject property several years ago. The site is currently 
vacant and was previously cleared. The property is located within the Palm Coast Park Master 
Planned Development (MPD). Tracts 18 and 20 of the Palm Coast Park MPD were platted in 
2009 which created 15 lots. Lot 4 was subsequently replated in 2019 via the Palm Coast REH 
plat to create four Commercial Lots and a Stormwater Tract to be used for a master stormwater 
system. The subject property is parcel 4 of the Palm Coast REH plat. In February 2019, a 
Technical Site Plan was approved on parcel 3 for an Amoco gas station and convenience store 
which has been constructed. The subject site will share access with the Amoco station off W. 
Matanzas Woods Parkway.   
 
 
LAND USE AND ZONING INFORMATION 
The subject site is designated DRI - Mixed Use on the Future Land Use Map and has a zoning 
designation of MPD. The site is located within Tract 20 of the Palm Coast Park MPD which 
provides for Flex Uses, including High Intensity Commercial (COM-3) uses. A fundamental 
principle of a mixed-use area is to ensure the compatibility between residential and non-
residential land uses within close proximity of each other, thereby creating a more sustainable 
and self-supporting neighborhood. The following table summarizes the adjacent land use and 
zoning designations: 

SURROUNDING ZONING AND FLUM CATEGORIES 
Direction FLUM Category Zoning District 
North DRI - Mixed Use MPD  

East DRI – Mixed Use MPD 

South DRI – Mixed Use MPD 

West DRI – Mixed Use MPD 

 
SITE DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS 
 
Site development for the property must be in accordance with the requirements of the Palm 
Coast Park MPD, City’s Land Development Code and must also comply with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan.  The following table summarize the basic development standards and 
how the proposed development project complies with these standards. 
 

SITE DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS 
 

Criteria (per Palm Coast Park MPD  
unless noted) 

Required Provided 

Minimum Development Site Area  20,000 sq. ft.  120,288 sq. ft. 
Maximum Impervious Surface Ratio  0.85 0.78 
Maximum Floor Area Ratio 0.50  0.49 
Maximum Building Height (COM-3) 75 feet  40 feet 6 inches          
Minimum Building Setbacks 
 

Front (North):           20 feet 
Interior Side (West): 10 feet  
Rear (South):          20 feet 
Street Side (East):  20 feet 

    85 feet 
    87 feet 
    91 feet 
    81 feet 

Minimum Parking: 2 spaces per 
100 storage units 

560+34 RV/100 X 2 
=12 spaces  

12 spaces including  
1 for disabled persons 

48



                                                                                                                                                              Application #4862 

3 
 

Minimum Landscape Buffers  Front (North):           25 feet 
Side (East):              10 feet 
 
Rear (South):           10 feet 
Street Side (West):  10 feet 

25 feet 
Shared access with a 
landscaped median 
10 feet 
10 feet 

 
 
TECHNICAL SITE PLAN PROCESS 
The Technical Site Plan review application process is specified in Chapter 2, Section 2.11 of the 
Unified Land Development Code (LDC). This review process is intended to ensure that site 
development takes place in an orderly and efficient manner through a process that provides 
adequate review based on the size and complexity of the proposed development. The purpose 
of detailed site plan review is to ensure compliance with all development regulations; therefore, 
the level of detail shall be that of construction plans and technical specifications. The review is 
based not only on conformance to Code, but also conformance with any applicable approved 
master plan. Approval of the construction plans and technical specifications represents the final 
development order. Therefore, approval of a Technical Site Plan Development Order authorizes 
an applicant to apply for a building permit. 
 
The application incorporates a review/approval process coordinated by and through City staff 
and the Planning and Land Development Review Board (PLDRB) based upon the scale of 
development.  As provided in Table 2-1 of Sec. 2.04 of the LDC, commercial projects between 
40,001 to 100,000 square feet of gross floor area are classified as Moderate or Tier 2 projects, 
thus the scale of this development requires review and recommendation by City staff with final 
determination by the PLDRB.  
 
 
ANALYSIS BASED ON UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE CHAPTER 2, SECTION 2.05.05  
 
Prior to approval of a Development Order for a Technical Site Plan, the proposed project must 
be evaluated for conformance with the requirements of LDC Chapter 2, Section 2.05.05, which 
provides criteria that must be met to issue approval. The proposed project has been evaluated 
against the review criteria as directed by the LDC, which states: When reviewing a development 
order application, the approval authority shall determine whether sufficient factual data was 
presented in order to render a decision. The decision to issue a development order shall be 
based upon the following, including but not limited to: 
 
A. The proposed development must not be in conflict with or contrary to the public 
interest; 
 
Planning Staff Finding: The proposed development is not in conflict with or contrary to the 
public interest, as the site’s specified land uses are consistent with the project’s DRI - Mixed 
Use designation on the Future Land Use Map as well as the uses allowed in the MPD. The site 
is adjacent to a commercial fuel station and convenience store and is appropriately located to 
serve the residential development as the projects of the Sawmill Branch phases of the Palm 
Coast Park MPD are developed. 
 
B. The proposed development must be consistent with the provisions of the Land 
Development Code and the Comprehensive Plan; 

 

49



                                                                                                                                                              Application #4862 

4 
 

Planning Staff Finding: The request will be consistent with all applicable portions of the LDC 
and the Comprehensive Plan. The following are a selection of goals, policies and objectives 
from the Comprehensive Plan that the project supports: 

 
• Chapter 1, Future Land Use Element: Goal 1.1 – Preserve the character of 

residential communities, prevent urban sprawl and protect open space and 
environmental resources, while providing a mix of land uses, housing types, 
services, and job opportunities in mixed use centers and corridors. 
 

• Chapter 1, Future Land Use Element: Objective 1.1.4 Discourage Urban 
Sprawl – Promote compact and contiguous development, a mixture of land uses, 
and discourage urban sprawl. 
 
 

• Chapter 1, Future Land Use Element: Policy 1.1.4.5  
Land use patterns will be required to be efficient and not disproportionately 
increase the cost of providing and maintaining public facilities, as well as providing 
housing and transportation strategies that will foster energy conservation. 
 

• Chapter 2, Transportation Element: Policy 2.1.11.3 
Provide opportunities for trip-chaining (combining several trips in one outing) within 
strategic mixed use centers, thereby reducing vehicle miles traveled and 
greenhouse gas emissions.  

 
•  Chapter 3, Housing Element: Objective 3.3.5  

Protect predominantly residential areas from the intrusion of incompatible or more 
intensive land uses. 
 

C. The proposed development must not impose a significant financial liability or 
hardship for the City;  
 
Planning Staff Findings: The public infrastructure needed to support the project is already in 
place or close to the site and any extensions of utilities will be provided by the developer at the 
developer’s expense.   
 
D. The proposed development must not create an unreasonable hazard, or nuisance, or 
constitute a threat to the general health, welfare, or safety of the City’s inhabitants; 
 
Planning Staff Finding:  The proposed development poses no unreasonable hazard, nuisance, 
nor does it constitute a threat to the general health, welfare, or safety of the City’s inhabitants. 
All improvements will be newly constructed and developed in compliance with the Palm Coast 
Park MPD, the relevant LDC, Building Code and other review agency requirements.  

 
E. The proposed development must comply with all other applicable local, state and 
federal laws, statutes, ordinances, regulations, or codes; 
 
Planning Staff Finding: The applicant has submitted plans and permit applications as required 
to the various agencies having jurisdiction, and shall meet all requirements of other applicable 
local, state and federal laws, statutes, ordinances, regulations and codes.  
 
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 
 

50



                                                                                                                                                              Application #4862 

5 
 

After review and evaluation of the proposed project for conformance with the requirements of 
the City of Palm Coast LDC, Comprehensive Plan, and the Palm Coast Park MPD, staff finds 
that the proposed development complies with all such requirements.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the PLDRB find this project in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan, the 
Land Development Code and the Palm Coast Park MPD and approve Palm Coast Park Lot 4, 
Parcel 4 Storage Facility, Technical Site Plan Tier 2, Application No. 4862.  

51



Prepared By:         Reserved for Recording Information:   
Community Development Department 
City of Palm Coast 
160 Lake Avenue, Suite 135 
Palm Coast, FL 32164                  

 
Return To: 
City Clerk 
City of Palm Coast 
160 Lake Avenue, Suite 225 
Palm Coast, FL 32164 

CITY OF PALM COAST 

TECHNICAL SITE PLAN TIER 2 
DEVELOPMENT ORDER APPROVAL 

PALM COAST PARK, LOT 4, PARCEL 4 STORAGE FACILITY 
 

 On August 17, 2022, the City of Palm Coast issued this Development Order relating to and 

touching and concerning the following described property: 
LOT 3, PALM COAST REH, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 39, 

PG 22, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF FLAGLER COUNTY, FLORIDA 

(The afore described property description has been provided to the City of Palm Coast by the 

owner of the afore described property.) 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

Property Owner:   PALM COAST REH LLC 
    577 BARNES BLVD., STE 650 
    ROCKLEDGE, FL 32955 
 
Project Name:  PALM COAST PARK, LOT 4, PARCEL 4, STORAGE FACILITY 
Project No.:   2018090022 
Application Type:  TECHNICAL SITE PLAN TIER 2 
Application No.   4862 
 
Requested Development Approval: Site Plan Approval for a 3 Story Storage Facility 
(in accordance with stamped approved plans)       
 
Zoning Classification: Master Planned Development 

52



FLUM: DRI Mixed Use 
Parcel #'s: 28-10-30-4295-00000-0040 
Address #: 105 Matanzas Woods Pkwy 
Parcel Acreage: 2.76 +/- 
Site S.F.: 120,288 SF 

SITE DEVELOPMENT DATA 
 

Building Use: 3 Story Storage Facility 
Bldg Height: 40'-6" 
Total Bldg Square Footage: 90,000 
Storage Units: 560 
RV Parking Spaces S.F: 21,165 
Parking Provided: Standard Spaces: 11; Accessible Spaces: 1 
Bicycle Parking Spaces: 6 
Floor Area Ratio: 0.49% 
Impervious Surface Ratio (ISR): 77.8% 
Pervious/Open Space: 22.2% 
 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 

 The Development Approval sought is consistent with the City of Palm Coast 

Comprehensive Plan and will be developed consistent with and in compliance to applicable land 

development regulations and all other applicable regulations and ordinances as set forth in the 

Code of Ordinances of the City of Palm Coast. 

 The Owners have expressly agreed to be bound by and subject to the development 

conditions and commitments stated below and have covenanted and agreed to have such 

conditions and commitments run with, follow, and perpetually burden the afore described property. 

 

ORDER 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED AND AGREED THAT: 
  
 (1) The afore mentioned application for Development Approval is GRANTED. 

 (2) All development of the property shall fully comply with all of the codes and 

53



ordinances in effect in the City of Palm Coast at the time of issuance of a development order 

and/or development permit, including but not limited to, all impact fee ordinances. 

 (3) Issuance of a Development Permit or Development Order by a municipality does not 

create any right on the part of an applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal agency and 

does not create any liability on the part of the municipality for issuance of the permit if the 

applicant fails to obtain requisite approvals or fulfill the obligations imposed by a state or federal 

agency or undertakes actions that result in a violation of state or federal law.  

 (4) This Development Order touches and concerns the afore described property and the 

conditions, commitments and provisions of this Development Order shall perpetually burden, run 

with and follow the said property and be a servitude upon and binding upon said property unless 

released in whole or in part  by action of the City of Palm Coast by virtue of a document of equal 

dignity herewith.  The Owners have expressly covenanted and agreed to this provision and all 

other terms and provisions of this Development Order. 

 (5) The terms and provisions of this Order are not severable and in the event any 

portion of this Development Order shall be found to be invalid or illegal then the entire 

Development Order shall be null and void. 

 (6) The Development Order shall remain valid for a period of twelve (12) months from 

the date of issuance. If construction has not commenced or is not continuing in good faith to 

conclusion during this valid period, this Development Order will expire. The Development Order 

may be extended, upon request, during the period of three (3) months before the expiration of the 

valid period. Staff may approve an extension not to exceed twelve (12) months. A maximum of 

three (3) extensions may be granted provided the development has a valid Certificate of 

Concurrency. 

 (7)   No construction of any TYPE shall commence until a mandatory 
pre-construction meeting has been conducted with City Staff.  
 (8) Utility fees and applicable agreements shall be executed prior to issuance of a 
Site Development permit. 
 (9) All required federal, state, county, and/or local permits shall be acquired prior to 

construction. 

 (10) All projects located in Special Flood Hazard Area “A” or “AE” zone(s) shall meet 

Chapter 10.02, Unified Land Development Code and Chapter 15, Code of Ordinances regarding 

Flood Damage Protection regulations.  These building(s) and associated utilities will require 

elevation certificates at all three stages (construction drawing, building under construction and final 

54



construction) at building permit.   

 (13) This Development Order satisfies the concurrency requirements for transportation, 

sanitary sewer, sold waste, drainage, parks & recreation, and potable water. This Development 

Order is limited to the land uses and associated development as listed below: 

Description: Storage Facility; Unit Amount: 90,000 SF 

Description: RV Parking Spaces: 21,165 SF 

Concurrency shall remain valid with the life of this Development Order.  

 

Done and Ordered on the date first written above. 
 
As approved and authorized for execution by the Planning and Land Development 
Regulation Board of the City of Palm Coast, at their regularly scheduled meeting of  
August 17, 2022 . 
 

Attest:       City of Palm Coast, Florida 
 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 

Irene Schaefer, Recording Secretary  Clint Smith, Chairperson 

        

_____Sign and Record 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

55



    Development Order Affidavit 
   OWNER'S CONSENT AND COVENANT: 
    Project Name: PALM COAST PARK, LOT 4, PARCEL 4, STORAGE FACILITY 
    Application Type: TECHNICAL SITE PLAN TIER 2 
    Application No.: 4862 
 

 COMES NOW, PALM COAST REH LLC, the Owner on behalf of itself and its successors, assigns 

and transferees of any nature, whatsoever, and consents to and agrees with the covenants to perform and 

fully abide by the provisions, terms, and conditions, and commitments set forth in this Development Order. 

Affiant states that he/she accepts the findings, as outlined in this Development Order, and further states 

that he/she has neither paid nor promised any person, firm or corporation any discount, rebate, 

commission, or refund for the purpose of securing the said Development Order for PALM COAST REH  

(LOT 4) PARCEL 4 STORAGE: 

 

ATTEST:      PALM COAST REH LLC 
       577 BARNES BLVD., STE 650 

       ROCKLEDGE, FL 32955 

 

____________________________  _________________________________ 

Attesting Corporate Official   Authorized Signer 

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
STATE OF ___________________ 
COUNTY OF _________________ 

 
  The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me, by means of _ physical presence or  

_ online notarization, this _____ day of _________________, 2022, by ___________________________ 

of PALM COAST REH LLC who is personally known to me or has produced  ______________ (type of 

identification) as identification and did/did not take an oath. 

 

  WITNESS my hand and official seal in the County and State last aforesaid this _____ day of 

________________________, 2022. 

 

       _______________________________ 

       Notary Public 

56



Palm Coast Park Lot 4-Parcel 4 Distant Aerial 

US
HW

Y 1
N 

LONDON DR 

LO
NDONDERRY DR 

MATANZAS WOODS PKWY 

   
        

  

 

Legend 
Palm Coast City Limits 
Palm Coast Park Lot 4-Parcel 4 Map Provided By: Planning Division 

0 375 750Feet ± 
57



Palm Coast Park Lot 4-Parcel 4 Close Up Aerial 

US
HW

Y 1
N 

MATANZAS WOODS PKWY 

   
        

  

Legend 
Palm Coast City Limits 
Palm Coast Park Lot 4-Parcel 4 Map Provided By: Planning Division 

0 200 400Feet ± 
58



Palm Coast Park Lot 4-Parcel 4 FLUM 

DRI-Mixed Use 

Mixed Use 

Conservation 

   

    

   

    

 

 

Legend 0 200 400Feet 
Palm Coast City Limits Palm Coast FLUM DRI-Mixed Use Mixed Use 

ConservationPalm Coast Park Lot 4-Parcel 4 
Map Provided By: Planning Division 

± 
59



Palm Coast Park Lot 4-Parcel 4 Zoning 

MPD 

COM-3 

PRS 

PSP 

   

    

  

    

Legend 0 200 400Feet 
Palm Coast City Limits Palm Coast Zoning MPD PSP 

COM-3 Palm Coast Park Lot 4-Parcel 4 PRS 
Map Provided By: Planning Division 

± 
60



---------

.,,~,.,,, 
PRIHOP...a. POST 

I~ POSltlON(CAllfll)~~c:,::~R~ 
t1~ 

>E.<I1llli 
' l 

r..E:,USt ,UGFIRE 
, ..,...•~:~1 

l N 

•SITE DATA 
~ADDRESS 105MATANZASWOODSPARKWAY 

PALM COAST PARK MPD REQUIREMENTS 

MINIMUM LOT SIZE 20,000 SF 
MINIMUM LOT 'MOTH 100 F'l 
FRONTYARDBLOG SET8ACI( 20FT 

I 
STREET SIDE BLDG SETBACI< 20 FT 
SIDE YARD BLDG SETBACK 10 FT ------ \ 

I 
REAR YARD BLDG SETBACI< 20 FT 
MAX BLOG HEIGHT 75 FT 
FARsS0% 

I PROPOSED PARCEL BUILDING SET8ACl<S 

I 
I FRONT YARD BLDG SETBACK BSOFT 

STREET SIDE BLDG SETSACI< 805FT 
SIDE YARD BLDG SETBACK. 870FT 

I 
REAR LOT SETBACK 91•FT 
PROPOSED BUILDING HEIGHT 40'~" (TOPOF PARAPET) 

35'-10" (TOPOF ROOF DECK) 

I PARCEL 3 PARCEL 10 z 28-10-30 .... 295-00000-~0 
SEPARATESITEPu\N ZONING z MPD - COM-3CONCRETE WHEEL STOP TOBESUBMnTED ZONING NORTH RNIMATAN2AS WOODS PK:W'f 

N,S ZONING SOUTH MPD • COM-3 I 
I ZOIN!NG EAST MPO - COM-3 

ZONING 'NEST MPO • COM-3 
NOTE EXlSTll+GCITYUFTSTAnON FUTURE LAND use • ORI MIXED USE 
TO BEBROUGl-fl INTO OPEIV.TING TOTAL AREA• 120,288SF(276AC)ICONDITIONBYTHECITYOf PALM PROPORTIONAL SHARE OF TRACT A•1 74 AC 
COAST FLOOR AREA RATIO • 90,000 SF 049% 

PERVIOUSAREA • 26,752 SF (0 61 AC) 22 2% 
IMPERVIOUS AREA" 93,53S SF (2 15 AC) 77 8% 

PAVEMENT• 61,922 SF 

I 
/ BUil.DiNG• 30.000SF 

CONCRETE•1 ,814Sf 
MAXIMUM IMPERVIOUS AREA ALLO'M:D • 8S% 

SOIL TYPE· 
13 - IMMOKAI.EE FINE SAND 

RETENTIONANETLAND TRACT 
FLOOD ZONE 

FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP COMMUNITY PANE #1203K:.0I10..E 
FOR FLAGLER COUNTY. FLORIDA EFFECTIVE DATE JUNES. 2018. 
FLOOD ZONE "X-

PROPOSEO USE STORAGE FACILITY 

BUILDING DATA 
PROPOSED STORAGE BUILOlNG" 90.000 SF 
(3 STORY BUILDING 30.00 SF PER FLOOR) 

PARKING DATA 
REQUIRED 2SP/100 STORAGE UNITS 

(34RV+560UNITS)1100UNITSz 12SPACES 
1 HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE 

PROVIDED 
9"-20'• 9SPACES 
9"x18'• 2SPACES 
12'"20'., 1 SPACES jHANOICAP) 
12 TOTAL SPACES 

RV/BOAT STORAGE AREA 
12"x•O'•J2SPACES 
12·x•o· HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE" 2 SPACES 

PAVED RV PARKING • 21 ,165 SF (EXCLUDES ORM:" ISLE) 

~BIKE SPACES 
PROVIDED 6 SPACES 

UTILITY SERVICES 

WATER CITY OF PALM COAST 
I l><l:(M'll!ANCE$1W.llEl••t>'1-(0,-!ACON01110N1""1WlllPRE\IEM'l-011 WASTEWATER CITY OF PALM COAST 

M;l'-.....o,QRCLEN<OU"f Of,.,,., MtASUIIESUHD TOT'IAI' SEOll,IE"1 RECUUMWATER CITY OF PALM COAST 
ELECTRIC FLORIDA POWER & LtGI-IT 
TELEPHONE AT&T 
CABLE SPECTRUM 

,tO,,-OOfSEOMENTOHIOP\.llue,ocHTS-Of-V nes-•R{QUIA(l()Pl)llf$$1HC 

:[~&~iii~iiiiiji~i;ii;:::::~ 
legend 

PROPOSED CONCRETE c::=::J 
PROPOSED TRUNCATED DOME Q ,"l,,,,·'] 

c:==::J
"' c:==::JI C=:J 

61



STUCCO LIGHT SAND / SIGNAGE, 80 S.F. ,;,0 
2· STUCCO REVEAL r r

FINISH. SW 6000 (TYP.) MAXIMUM (TYP.) I 
_F(~ ' 

26'-0" 

'-......, 
-~ 

TYP.) -~ 
LLIAMS ",'-., 

- 1 
. 

........__ 
I 
I 

\ 
" 
·71·i ~:-~~1~:11?,1~~t:i/t tib~-~~:.~:•;:-

I 

,½ 
I 

--
1-· - --- •I 

~-- -- ------
-= --

... .. , 

,/// 4'-10" s 75% o f 14'-4;;----~ 

'--j' 
/ 4••4" ' " " I I ' ~-

.-, r ,,. ' ·- EIFS CORNICE IPalm 1-oas1•/ WHITE, SW6000 

s~~!-~~:~~ft~e 
~':~ 

SHERWIN WILLIAMS 
PAINT SW6000 

, ,4'-4" • I .--, I c,"~ SHERWIN WILLIAMS 

I PAINT SW9167 

SHERWIN WILLIAMS 

N" 
PAINT SW6003 ------

, I 

. . "';:t!·r/lF1:i'J;B:tBtif.tfl.~f,t~(r( 

., ., 

s ·.-1>,o 

u~~-y Bj·~ 
1-1F44ll)> : • '<Kimberly -.; _-

JOINTS (TYP ) 
STUCCO CONTROL 

V\ 
z 
0 

SPLIT FACE BLOCK ( 
PAINT· SHERWIN WI 
SW91 67 

<C 
0'-0" > 

LJJL 14• TALL CYLINDRICAL STOREFRONT W/ ______,,./' 125'-0" ~-- BLACK ALUMINUM "-.__ 4-0· DEEP CANOPY 
WALL SCONCE UPI GUARDIAN GLASS. LLC; STOREFRONT BLACK ..J 
OOWN LIGHTING. SUNGUARD SNX 62127 NORTH ELEVATION v LJJBLACK (TYP.) 
WAC WS-W36614-BK SCALE: 118" = 1'-0" 

a::STUCCO, LIGHT SAND \9 2• STUCCO REVEAL rSIGNAGE, 80 SF 

14• TALL CYLINDRICAL BLACK ALUMINUM ______,,,/ STOREFRONT Wt ____J '- SPLIT FACE BLOCK (TYP.) 
WALL SCONCE UPI SLIDING STOREFRONT GUARDIAN GLASS, LLC: PAINT . SHERWIN WILLIAMSEAST ELEVATION <C <CDOWN LIGHTING. SUNGUARD SNX 62/27 6003 
BLACK (TYP.) SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0" 0 LL.WAC WS-W36614-BK 

:7i------------' 
' Palm Coast 
Self Storage 

000-000-0000 I 

r ....... , 

r r I- I-
~-• ,- STUCCO, LIGHT SAND 2• STUCCO REVEAL 
.•'---1 I FINISH. SW 6000 (TYP.) (TYP.) V'l a:: LJJ 

r---r-----:----;---t=~=;#===I 

----+-
............... 

-~ 

" ..... 1 1 -4--... --.__ 

o·-0· 

'--l r ... 

~---+-•'-~ 

I 

'" "'I', ~'-.,_ SH ERWIN WILLIAMS 
I "-...._ -~ I--, I, __ 

V,26'-0" 

EIFS CORNICE, 
COLOR SW 6000 

EIFS CORNICE ..J <C<C <( 
0 "' 

(2) SIDED LIGHTED 
STUCCO CONTROL ~~SIGN BY SIGN WHITE. SW6000 

MANUFACTURER LL. a:JOINTS (TYP.) 

2• CMU CAP, ----. 
COLOR: SW 6000 PAINT SW6000 00 ... 0 
SPLIT FACE BLOCK ._ SHERWIN WIU.IAMS 
(TYP.) PAINT SW9167 u u Vl V\PAINT · SW9167 

'-~ SHERW IN WILLIAMS 
PAINT SW6003 <C 

0 
6'-8" ..Ju 

4 ' · 4" s 75% of 14'-4 " ...J ...J LJJ 
SITE SIGNAGE DETAIL u 
SCALE: 3/8" = 1'-0" SOUTH ELEVATION ':,,~':, J'x6'-6"x 1.314• 18GA GALV <C <( ..J a:: 

SCALE: 118" = 1'-0" HOLLOW METAL DOOR 

4-0• DEEP CANOPY 
BLACK 

s T/STORE FRONT 
9'-0" 

0'-0-
14" TALL CYLINDRICAL 4'-10" s 75% of 6'-8" 

I 

STUCCO, LIGHT SAND 
FINISH. SW 6000 (TYP.) 

I 

PAINT· SW 6003 

.... 
.........",_ --------'<I 

r... <C <CQ,. ..... a., a.,2' STUCCO REVEAL 
(TYP.) 

26'-0" r 'F=============~ 
'----._ EIFS CORNICE 

".., WHITE, SW6000 

"-.__ SHERWIN WILLIAMS 
PAINT SW6000 

SHERWIN WILLIAMS 
PAINT SW91 67 

. .....__ SHERWIN WILLIAMSELEVATION 
PAINT SW6003 

WALL SCONCE UPI 
DOWN LIGHTING 
BLACK (TYP.) 
WAC WS,W36614-BK WEST ELEVATION 

SCALE: 118" = 1'-0" 

26'-0" 
\:==:=:=:=:=:=:=:=:=:=:=:=:=:==/I¼ ,,___.,...___________ I"-{ MAXIMUM 

1------T""'"----,---i:==i;;=======l l====l========I
I .,.•.,o" 

FINISH, SW 6000 (TYP.) \ 

\ 
r (TYP.) 

STUCCO CONTROL 
JOINTS (TYP.) '.., Palm Coast / 4-0" DEEP CANOPY 

-T---.'•----·T--

t.,,, 

Self Storage 
000-000-0000 

6'-8" 

4 '-10" s 75% of 6 1-8 11 

160'-0" 
L 

-

 

/ 

':;;.I -· 

I 

LJJ 
\_.,j 

<C 
a: 
0 
I-
V'l 

I-
0 
...J 

a: 
<C 
Cl. 

0 
a:: 
LJJ 

X 
LiJ 

>-

..J 

u 

62



City of Palm Coast, Florida
Agenda Item

Agenda Date: August 17, 2022

Department COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT

Amount  

Division PLANNING Account 
#

 

Subject BROWARD-PALM COAST STORAGE FACILITY, A TECHNICAL SITE PLAN, 
APPLICATION # 5077

Presenter: Estelle Lens, Planner, AICP 

Background:
Broward-Palm Coast Storage Facility is a Technical Site Plan for a two-story indoor self-storage 
Facility. It is proposed on a vacant 11.35+/- acre site which is located at 2240 Old Kings Road. 
The project’s Site Plan shows it to be comprised of a 45,235 square foot building with 89,690 
square feet of gross floor area. There will be a total of 556 individual internal storage units that 
will be available to the public. The project is considered a “Moderate” (Tier 2) development, 
based on the project’s total gross floor area, which requires review and approval by the 
Planning and Land Development Regulation Board (PLDRB).  
The site is zoned High Intensity Commercial (COM-3) which allows for development of Mini-
warehouses, Office Warehouses and Self-Storage Facilities.

Staff finds that the proposed plan is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Land 
Development Code (LDC) for the requirements for approval of a Technical Site Plan 
Development Order including:

A. The proposed development must not be in conflict with or contrary to the public interest;
B. The proposed development must be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and the 

provisions of this LDC;
C. The proposed development must not impose a significant financial liability or hardship 

for the City;
D. The proposed development must not create an unreasonable hazard, or nuisance, or 

constitute a threat to the general health, welfare, or safety of the City's inhabitants; and
E. The proposed development must comply with all other applicable local, state, and 

federal laws, statutes, ordinances, regulations, or codes.

Recommended Action:
Staff recommends the Planning and Land Development Regulation Board find the project in 
compliance with the Land Development Code and the Comprehensive Plan; and approve the 
Technical Site Plan – Tier 2 for Broward-Palm Coast Storage, Application No. 5077, subject to 
the following: 
The Development Order will not be signed until the following comment is addressed and 
signed off on by City Staff:
Stormwater
A double inlet with no outfall pipe is being proposed at the emergency stabilized entrance. This 
will not be approved. An outfall is needed. Also, the pipe at the main entrance was removed. I 

63



suspect that the entrance slopes played a role in this decision. If it would help provide a better 
slope, the swale centerline can be moved closer to the ROW line and transitioned at the south 
side of the property. I would prefer to have MES on both sides of the pipes.

Conditions for the Development Order: 
A Certificate of Occupancy will not be issued until the following item is addressed and 
satisfied:
A Right of Way Deed and Easement Agreement for the widening of Old Kings Road as depicted 
on the Site Plan are required prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.

 

64



 

 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
BROWARD-PALM COAST STORAGE 

TECHNICAL SITE PLAN - TIER 2 
PLANNING AND LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATION BOARD 

STAFF REPORT  
AUGUST 17, 2022 

 
 

OVERVIEW           
               
Application Number: 5077 
Project Name:  Broward-Palm Coast Storage 
Applicant:   Mills Short & Associates 
Size of Subject Property:  11.35 +/- acre  
Property Owner:  PC2 Storage, LLC 
FLUM designation:    Mixed Use 
Zoning designation:  High Intensity Commercial (COM-3)  
Current Use:                         Vacant commercial land 
Parcel ID #:                   20-11-31-0000-01020-0030 
Location: 2240 Old Kings Road – Approximately 1.7 miles south of Palm 

Coast Parkway 
 
                
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION 
 
The applicant has submitted a Technical Site Plan application for a two-story indoor self-storage 
facility. It is proposed on a vacant 11.35+/- acre site which is located at 2240 Old Kings Road. 
The project’s Technical Site Plan shows it to be comprised of a 45,235 square foot building with 
89,690 square feet of gross floor area. There will be a total of 556 individual internal storage 
units that will be available to the public. The project is considered a “Moderate” (Tier 2) 
development, based on the project’s total gross floor area, which requires review and approval 
by the Planning and Land Development Regulation Board (PLDRB).   
 
BACKGROUND/SITE HISTORY 
 
The site is zoned High Intensity Commercial (COM-3) and is located at 2240 Old Kings Road, 
approximately 1.7 miles south of Palm Coast Parkway. The applicant purchased this parcel from 
Old King Storage, LLC on September 7, 2021.

65



                                                                                                                                              Application # 5077 

2 
 

 
LAND USE AND ZONING INFORMATION 
The subject site is designated Mixed Use on the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) and is zoned 
High Intensity Commercial (COM-3).  
The Mixed Used FLUM designation represents existing and future mixed use corridors and 
employment centers throughout the City that provide general retail, professional services and 
offices. A blending of residential and institutional uses is also allowed in this land use 
designation with light industrial uses permissible under certain conditions. The Mixed Use 
designation is intended to provide opportunities for residents to work, shop, engage in 
recreational activities and attend school and religious services in reasonably close proximity to 
residential dwellings. The Mixed Use FLUM designation permits several zoning districts 
including the COM-3 zoning district. 
The purpose of the High Intensity Commercial (COM-3) district is to provide areas for the most 
intensive commercial uses, including those that focus on automobile sales and service, outdoor 
storage and heavy traffic. 
The following table summarizes the general land use and zoning information:  
 

SURROUNDING ZONING AND FLUM CATEGORIES 
Direction FLUM Category Zoning District 
North Mixed Use COM-2 

East Mixed Use COM-3 

South Mixed Use COM-3 

West Mixed Use PSP & Highway I-95 

 
SITE DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS 
 
Site development for the property must be in accordance with the requirements of the City of 
Palm Coast Land Development Code and must also comply with the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan.  The following table summarizes the basic development standards and how the proposed 
development project complies with these standards. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

66



                                                                                                                                              Application # 5077 

3 
 

SITE DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS 
Town Center at Palm Coast Planned Development Agreement 

 

Criteria  Required Provided 
Minimum Development Site Area  30,000 sq. ft.       494,406 sq. ft. 
Maximum Impervious Surface Ratio  0.70            0.18 
Maximum Building Height  75 feet        30 feet          
Minimum Building Setbacks 
 

Front (East):            25 feet 
Side (South):           10 feet 
Side (North):            10 feet 
Rear (West):            25 feet 
 

    45.3 feet  
  408.0 feet 
  100.9 feet 
  267.8 feet 
   

Minimum Parking:  
Warehouse/Self Storage 
2 spaces per 100 storage units 

556/100 X 2=11.12 
 

12 (Including 2 ADA 
space) 

Minimum Landscape Buffers  Front (East):             25 feet 
Side (South):            10 feet 
Rear (West):        10/25 feet 
Side (North):            10 feet 

  25 feet 
  10 feet 
  25 feet 
  10 feet 

 
 
TECHNICAL SITE PLAN PROCESS 
The Technical Site Plan review application process is specified in Chapter 2, Section 2.11 of the 
Unified Land Development Code (LDC). This review process is intended to ensure that site 
development takes place in an orderly and efficient manner through a process that provides 
adequate review based on the size and complexity of the proposed development. The purpose 
of detailed site plan review is to ensure compliance with all development regulations; therefore, 
the level of detail shall be that of construction plans and technical specifications. The review is 
based not only on conformance to Code, but also conformance with any applicable approved 
master plan. Approval of the construction plans and technical specifications represents the final 
development order. Therefore, approval of a Technical Site Plan Development Order authorizes 
an applicant to apply for a site development permit. 
 
The application incorporates a review/approval process coordinated by and through City staff, 
the Planning and Land Development Review Board (PLDRB) and City Council based upon the 
scale of development.  As provided in Table 2-1 of Sec. 2.04 of the LDC, warehouse projects 
with 40,001 to 100,000 square feet of gross floor area are classified as Moderate or Tier 2 
projects, thus the scale of this development requires approval from the PLDRB.  
 
ANALYSIS BASED ON UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE CHAPTER 2, SECTION 2.05.05  
 
Prior to approval of a Development Order for a Technical Site Plan, the proposed project must 
be evaluated for conformance with the requirements of LDC Chapter 2, Section 2.05.05, which 
provides criteria that must be met to issue approval. The proposed project has been evaluated 
against the review criteria as directed by the LDC, which states: When reviewing a development 
order application, the approval authority shall determine whether sufficient factual data was 
presented in order to render a decision. The decision to issue a development order shall be 
based upon the following, including but not limited to: 
 
A. The proposed development must not be in conflict with or contrary to the public 
interest; 

67



                                                                                                                                              Application # 5077 

4 
 

 
Planning Staff Finding: The proposed development is not in conflict with or contrary to the 
public interest, as the site’s specified land use is consistent with the Mixed Use designation on 
the Future Land Use Map and with the COM-3 Zoning District which will ensure it remains a 
good neighbor. The site is surrounded by vacant land with moderate to high intensity 
commercial zoning on three sides, and I-95 to the west.  
 
B. The proposed development must be consistent with the provisions of the Land 
Development Code and the Comprehensive Plan; 

 
Planning Staff Finding: The request will be consistent with the LDC and the Comprehensive 
Plan. The following are a selection of goals, policies and objectives from the Comprehensive 
Plan that the project supports: 

 
• Chapter 1, Future Land Use Element: Goal 1.1 – Preserve the character of 

residential communities, prevent urban sprawl and protect open space and 
environmental resources, while providing a mix of land uses, housing types, 
services, and job opportunities in mixed use centers and corridors. 
 

• Chapter 1, Future Land Use Element: Objective 1.1.4 Discourage Urban 
Sprawl – Promote compact and contiguous development, a mixture of land uses, 
and discourage urban sprawl. 
 

• Chapter 1, Future Land Use Element: Policy 1.1.4.5  
Land use patterns will be required to be efficient and not disproportionately 
increase the cost of providing and maintaining public facilities, as well as providing 
housing and transportation strategies that will foster energy conservation. 

 
• Chapter 2, Transportation Element: Policy 2.1.11.3 

Provide opportunities for trip-chaining (combining several trips in one outing) within 
strategic mixed use centers, thereby reducing vehicle miles traveled and 
greenhouse gas emissions.  
 

• Chapter 3, Housing Element: Objective 3.3.5  
Protect predominantly residential areas from the intrusion of incompatible or more 
intensive land uses. 
 

C. The proposed development must not impose a significant financial liability or 
hardship for the City;  
 
Planning Staff Findings: The public infrastructure needed to support the project is already in 
place or close to the site and any extensions of utilities will be provided by the developer at the 
developer’s expense.   
 
D. The proposed development must not create an unreasonable hazard, or nuisance, or 
constitute a threat to the general health, welfare, or safety of the City’s inhabitants; 
 
Planning Staff Finding:  The proposed development poses no unreasonable hazard, nuisance, 
nor does it constitute a threat to the general health, welfare, or safety of the City’s inhabitants. 
All improvements will be newly constructed and developed in compliance with the relevant Land 
Development Code, Building Code and other review agency requirements.  

 

68



                                                                                                                                              Application # 5077 

5 
 

E. The proposed development must comply with all other applicable local, state and 
federal laws, statutes, ordinances, regulations, or codes; 
 
Planning Staff Finding: The applicant has submitted plans and permit applications as required 
to the various agencies having jurisdiction, and shall meet all requirements of other applicable 
local, state and federal laws, statutes, ordinances, regulations and codes.  
 
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 
 
After review and evaluation of the proposed project for conformance with the requirements of 
the City of Palm Coast LDC, and the Comprehensive Plan, staff finds that, subject to the 
resubmittal of plans that address staff’s remaining comments, which are typical and minor, the 
proposed development complies with all such requirements. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Planning and Land Development Regulation Board find the project in 
compliance with the Land Development Code and the Comprehensive Plan; and approve the 
Technical Site Plan – Tier 2 for Broward-Palm Coast Storage, Application No. 5077, subject to 
the following:  
 
The Development Order will not be signed until the following comment is addressed and 
signed off on by City Staff: 
 
Stormwater 
A double inlet with no outfall pipe is being proposed at the emergency stabilized entrance. This 
will not be approved. An outfall is needed. Also, the pipe at the main entrance was removed. I 
suspect that the entrance slopes played a role in this decision. If it would help provide a better 
slope, the swale centerline can be moved closer to the ROW line and transitioned at the south 
side of the property. I would prefer to have MES on both sides of the pipes. 
 
 
Conditions for the Development Order:  
 
A Certificate of Occupancy will not be issued until the following item is addressed and 
satisfied: 
A Right of Way Deed and Easement Agreement for the widening of Old Kings Road as depicted 
on the Site Plan are required prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. 

69



Prepared By:         Reserved for Recording Information:   
Community Development Department 
City of Palm Coast 
160 Lake Avenue, Suite 135 
Palm Coast, FL 32164                  

 
Return To: 
City Clerk 
City of Palm Coast 
160 Lake Avenue, Suite 225 
Palm Coast, FL 32164 

CITY OF PALM COAST 

TECHNICAL SITE PLAN TIER 2 
DEVELOPMENT ORDER APPROVAL 
BROWARD-PALM COAST STORAGE 

 
 On August 17, 2022, the City of Palm Coast issued this Development Order relating to and 

touching and concerning the following described property: 
 

A PORTION OF GOVERNMENT SECTION 20 TOWNSHIP 11 SOUTH; RANGE 31 EAST; FLAGLER 

COUNTY, FLORIDA; LOCATED EAST OF INTERSTATE 95 AND WEST OF OLD KINGS RD 

 

(The afore described property description has been provided to the City of Palm Coast by the 

owner of the afore described property.) 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

Property Owner:   PC2 STORAGE LLC  
    3137 E SHADOWLAWN AVE NE 
    ATLANTA, GA 30305 
 
Project Name:  BROWARD-PALM COAST STORAGE 
Project No.:   2022050161 
Application Type:  TECHNICAL SITE PLAN TIER 2 
Application No.   5077 
 
Requested Development Approval: Site Plan Approval for Two Story Indoor Self Storage 
Facility (in accordance with stamped approved plans)       

70



 
Zoning Classification: COM-3 
FLUM: Mixed Use 
Parcel #'s: 20-11-31-0000-01020-0030 
Address #: 2240 Old Kings Rd 
Parcel Acreage: 11.35 +/- 
Site S.F.: 494,406 
  

SITE DEVELOPMENT DATA 
 

Building Use: Two Story Indoor Self Storage Facility 
Bldg Height: 30' 
Total Bldg Square Footage: 45,235 
Total Gross Floor Area: 89,690 
Total Storage Units: 556 
Parking Provided: Standard Spaces: 10; Accessible Spaces: 2 
Bicycle Parking Spaces: 3 
Impervious Surface Ratio (ISR): 18.1% 
Pervious/Open Space: 81.9% 
 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 

 The Development Approval sought is consistent with the City of Palm Coast 

Comprehensive Plan and will be developed consistent with and in compliance to applicable land 

development regulations and all other applicable regulations and ordinances as set forth in the 

Code of Ordinances of the City of Palm Coast. 

 The Owners have expressly agreed to be bound by and subject to the development 

conditions and commitments stated below and have covenanted and agreed to have such 

conditions and commitments run with, follow, and perpetually burden the afore described property. 

 

ORDER 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED AND AGREED THAT: 
  

71



 (1) The afore mentioned application for Development Approval is GRANTED. 

 (2) All development of the property shall fully comply with all of the codes and 

ordinances in effect in the City of Palm Coast at the time of issuance of a development order 

and/or development permit, including but not limited to, all impact fee ordinances. 

 (3) Issuance of a Development Permit or Development Order by a municipality does not 

create any right on the part of an applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal agency and 

does not create any liability on the part of the municipality for issuance of the permit if the 

applicant fails to obtain requisite approvals or fulfill the obligations imposed by a state or federal 

agency or undertakes actions that result in a violation of state or federal law.  

 (4) The conditions upon this development approval and the commitment made as to  this 

development approval, which have been accepted by and agreed to by the Owner of the property 

is as follows: 

Reviewing Department Comments 
A Certificate of Occupancy will not be issued until the following item is addressed and 
satisfied: A Right of Way Deed and Easement Agreement for the widening of Old Kings Road as 
depicted on the Site Plan are required prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. 
 
 (5) This Development Order touches and concerns the afore described property and the 

conditions, commitments and provisions of this Development Order shall perpetually burden, run 

with and follow the said property and be a servitude upon and binding upon said property unless 

released in whole or in part  by action of the City of Palm Coast by virtue of a document of equal 

dignity herewith.  The Owners have expressly covenanted and agreed to this provision and all 

other terms and provisions of this Development Order. 

 (6) The terms and provisions of this Order are not severable and in the event any 

portion of this Development Order shall be found to be invalid or illegal then the entire 

Development Order shall be null and void. 

 (7) The Development Order shall remain valid for a period of twelve (12) months from 

the date of issuance. If construction has not commenced or is not continuing in good faith to 

conclusion during this valid period, this Development Order will expire. The Development Order 

may be extended, upon request, during the period of three (3) months before the expiration of the 

valid period. Staff may approve an extension not to exceed twelve (12) months. A maximum of 

three (3) extensions may be granted provided the development has a valid Certificate of 

Concurrency. 

 (8)   No construction of any TYPE shall commence until a mandatory 
pre-construction meeting has been conducted with City Staff.  

72



 (9) Utility fees and applicable agreements shall be executed prior to issuance of a 
Site Development permit. 
 (10) All required federal, state, county, and/or local permits shall be acquired prior to 

construction. 

 (11) All projects located in Special Flood Hazard Area “A” or “AE” zone(s) shall meet 

Chapter 10.02, Unified Land Development Code and Chapter 15, Code of Ordinances regarding 

Flood Damage Protection regulations.  These building(s) and associated utilities will require 

elevation certificates at all three stages (construction drawing, building under construction and final 

construction) at building permit.   

 (12) This Development Order satisfies the concurrency requirements for transportation, 

sanitary sewer, sold waste, drainage, parks & recreation, and potable water. This Development 

Order is limited to the land uses and associated development as listed below: 

Description: Self Storage Facility; Unit Amount: 89,690 SF 

Concurrency shall remain valid with the life of this Development Order.  

 

Done and Ordered on the date first written above. 
 
As approved and authorized for execution by the Planning and Land Development 
Regulation Board of the City of Palm Coast, at their regularly scheduled meeting of  
August 17, 2022. 
 
 

Attest:       City of Palm Coast, Florida 
 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 

Irene Schaefer, Recording Secretary  Clint Smith, Chairperson 

        

_____Sign and Record 

        

 

 

 

 

 

73



    Development Order Affidavit 
   OWNER'S CONSENT AND COVENANT: 
    Project Name: BROWARD-PALM COAST STORAGE 
    Application Type: TECHNICAL SITE PLAN TIER 2 
    Application No.: 5077 
 

 COMES NOW, PC2 STORAGE LLC, the Owner on behalf of itself and its successors, assigns and 

transferees of any nature, whatsoever, and consents to and agrees with the covenants to perform and fully 

abide by the provisions, terms, and conditions, and commitments set forth in this Development Order. 

Affiant states that he/she accepts the findings, as outlined in this Development Order, and further states 

that he/she has neither paid nor promised any person, firm or corporation any discount, rebate, 

commission, or refund for the purpose of securing the said Development Order for BROWARD STORAGE 

AT OLD KINGS ROAD: 

 

ATTEST:      PC2 STORAGE LLC  
       3137 E SHADOWLAWN AVE NE 
       ATLANTA, GA 30305 
 

____________________________  _________________________________ 

Attesting Corporate Official   Authorized Signer 

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
STATE OF ___________________ 
COUNTY OF _________________ 

 
  The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me, by means of _ physical presence or  

_ online notarization, this _____ day of _________________, 2022, by ___________________________ 

of PC2 STORAGE LLC  who is personally known to me or has produced  ______________ (type of 

identification) as identification and did/did not take an oath. 

 

  WITNESS my hand and official seal in the County and State last aforesaid this _____ day of 

________________________, 2022. 

 

       _______________________________ 

       Notary Public 

74



Distant Aerial 

Legend 

0 500 1,000 N

L=1 Palm Coast City Limits 
---===:::::J Feet

D Broward Storage � A 
Map Provided By: Planning Division 

75



Close Up Aerial 

76



FLUM 

77



Zoning 

78



s 
§ 
I" 

r 
£ 
! 

i 
i 
f• 

¥ 
I 
1 
!l 

i 
; 

i 
! 
i 
i 
I 
Ii 

i 
f 
i 
;i 

C 

I 
' ' ' 

' ' I 
' ' 

------r 
I 
I 

- • I 
! Ii , I 

ff J/1 
f ; I 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I--;, 
I I 

I 

I 
' , 

I 

I 

' ' I 
I 

I 
' ' I 

I ,, 
I , 
' I 

I I 
I 

' ' ' II ' ' I 
' I 

' I 
I 

' I 
' ' I 

' ' I 

t ... flJ............_,__, 

....,,.,, 
~t•T~l,.lC 
3!lt(t.>W)(l<,,U,-&vt_JI( 

"'HN'li""~)OJCII, 

~(."I 
'""'""°''•"'$soci..ru 1.u: 
711UJN01'1..,\Cl_41l K 
"'fROKAOlAOOtlOAJ)lltO 
ll'MOl,J~•11-1~~m 

..,,.,..,,.,. 
b.00..0.-;,t,,Qltto,,,o 
P...._.,(:O,o.$Tfl.~•)! 

"""""""' ,ioltT\•~W;lllllll;Al.0,0.RIW 

{N,0110).. "51Wff~10L~ 
~8'.ICJ<~t[w.r_,. 
PM fl~ll:l:»»ollnrtt,,,!( 

~ IC'rlONAL PERMITS 
D1'Y06~Co.o3Tff~""'"-',f,I 
CrT'f'f)fN.W,I004T1t'Ql<'O"°""'l'-,:., 
OT-'Ql> ........CC.,,.1ful1UT'feoo-f.~Qo~-1 
U.WO~>...._OIE~f\l:flW'I 

.,..,,_, 
9JT1:AMA••l:t,l,OU5(4'M<¢1,.S'J 
0('0/(\c;ooll(!,lfMl.,l,•dtO~Q~tXilll 
OltOff~~4l9'~..M?$,i 

,AAlllW.""""-'l 
llll,JLOWl;c;QYtlWil.1-'°"""' t 
o,t,-ar..Ct.~>INw..11.J 
N.K~Jt.llt:A~M.U,.a 

..,._QMtOol$nu,tt•"'t 
4ttw11LJ<.,• 1•l•!•?'ll;,I 
•Vt:~'-"'"""' l6NI S• fl•~ 

..awt."IEIOll"l'r-K·IM) I 

·-·f (11 ,,1~,rn,~ tti'J 
t CM,ll't., ~•I'! 
...J.UH1•11-.i 

fflMCIO(!S¥'.VQI! 
NM'.lll"OCtt>JYoO.t:"Qlll'O'JM.IOOIIIM\f~1""'-""'...eufVOJ116fO"'J 

~t-lN'~'! 
_,w,,11;"'0l,l$tOIISUJ•lllOol:,,Ol;•..e&.rf\U 
"!W0(.7,15,At:ltftJlll'llllT~""''"ll; 

fl:II.Of<IMOS101\,0,(1t.lJlll!~•~OM1?$ 
-U'l•TSr!lllu.,,'IIPf.llOM!i•!i"ACA • •t$P..CU 
J..l~5P,l,(:f5 

uw~n•n1".o.ci:S(!..a.1!1t&IIIC71'otv)•Jll!',W;ll 
•)1U~lf l hL'°•1'5P~l$P~S 
li.W-1'V nn• . ....,.ltAMUlW,•,eu 
llllOOfll!Ulf ,,.,-~...,._.,,;(:$ 

™<a,µ:GENO ~oi ::::::,;~--;~:::~~,~.,~ (.OoN()l"T<QMl.~ •106'.liCi$ 
..r,.,..,4IOl)ICA.,P~~JJl..aS 
IC"Q.1!'1,1,l;"'-•l•ACUeAJl"IIIIJDQIP>llU• 1••4'0• ~Lf;l~ 

STN&tJiltl$ 
#lllf.ll'tl/Cll fl,IA....011.-.,&~0l#T 
~Jtts...,.. 
~!O(J~l()ll 

P,---Y"11NCIUlf'-"!U 
,ufUllll~OC!W,jf<:'flON 
"l(tl'lb(jo,l1$1Gi<i,OCll,IOUia'Ot 
11too.-co,,,c.111£u!~~ 
'lt.OD~COfoClllflf~~ 
~Trllf""<=I.Oft.Mlc 

JRAHlC NOTES 
1IC t:OH"MACtotl 9tviu"IIIOIIIO(iflQW4M".(Dl«:l'U101'<€1'"'rl!;[-...f~ 
O,.,,t,O,.Jl'Cl'Qll?l)~,,ca,,r(lto!.elltUC.f,O,.,l'l'......-niNl!;,Alt-,PO/IWlrlt 
m,,,,,COQ,l!ttOl."-,,\NlrTCl'J~()l"I~ lfll-co-l...OJO.s.ANl • 

nCPJC)A;TII( -p,altcl il'lt0,/(~1 .o.rtu.a.t J)toQUR.IWA:Jff/u//Cf. ftlfl 
lMEClOWQIA"Off"flJ O,,.l'&l~"'°"Nl«"Ol'l:M.,.AQoCIC\.CWIU 11-<l neJ> 
......i.1&1f..~"Wfl<IWf'tlOlllf~l"-""'Ll"T\'W0·1W'I INOII. ,,u~ 

1 "!HOlt_l_NOUC,.vd.o-4l P"1Qll't,...,,Ul:OAlbe 
i .-..J.~l~J,QfllOr,.ll'llltnA"#O-l~St\lol.llftT~Qll.-\1111'0/I•~ 

JUlfll.QOITIC('-DGl:Oo',,.,'lt:~1.....0""-'t(•r~tEC,U,tyl"Nf•......... 
NIO--~~""'°iw,ff(IQOT!OiOl,Ao:!,1MI01J., ()c,,IT~J(.'ICN)ldl:,wo~w0'1<1n>TOIOtlOJlC"ll~,n()lt 

e,.i(CltOC?!t'MDfr~OIJl.l 
COW!lf.NC£40f."IT OCTCMltl<UJ 
co-.f:TIOH OCTOIE.~t2l6 

""'-
O)IJl'Ufllll>WI.\.O(AtfOt;Not'IIOllout,0 
flC:0-,™1:TQll•f)Al"lblOA"""'°"lOII" 
ttll~,COHSf'll:vCtlOfil toUllioQWll,.QlTl"!NI 

HICft.10-WVOzln,;.,..,.'<t~l">ltMOl'(J'ltl 

1)1;1,YATIOHllti-w.1...0TILOCM$lOoff01fl.u1Cf lliltllw1EltUcno,IIOll 

OilM"'AVI 
, Ah -.o.<;:14,totl>lt.11(11-!f.oC.!I' WJ.""""''"sooorow.~-,~$110A.-.O# 

GEN~Rfil. NOTES 
PAA~,$1A1,.""°l'KS-L &EOIM(,AIQl'jl(Oflloo,,C(N~ JO 
tt"lffb.MO#Wt4'1"[$TIO:lfl(I T.,"f;#uf.Sl0l-WoOC.IIP~'OM'Of1ALL• .. 

J ,._L•~&l'Atf.$"¥1!111-<l~t/#~~•~PACrt 
tw.l.l.MSIIO:IPCO"'"'"'l flll~H.f.Cfl'wl11t,1#'1C. l>...14110flt,.. 
~....,,.,n-«tu:,,<1,o.,,DtJ>AA•..«10ro,~TA''°""''oon 
SJ"""6<1111)5J'Kl'lc;ATIQNl.,Oftll'C,WJtl'ICOE«w$"WtnQII CUll~l.lll 

l "'-i.~P,t, __O.,~fil'.C,CU.P-"'4i 11t"'IOl'£IIIVS,o,.f0~11~~ 
...cCOIICWl<:f'M,.,~,oo,.t!M!WIO~ll;1ll- (;IIAA!i"fltafflbw 
"-~~U0l'GW£0Cl•to-'Ell4•1NOOMt!EWfl1tEllll¥0\1:0llt 
COloN..CIICfOWIT/Ot,lflO(Y(lOl>wl•f 

\ ALl~IO ~w,t,.YotJl'-Tl~l(l'OSlll IOU..<Ati twO!l:t:CTPOl.11 
llC.1~""11~11"'1.flt~llliuwt01'lltltwrt>fAOl$<,,,,....t.LO 
0#2.......~l:CU 1'1f..-"Q.lNlllOl'<fll,1$~ffll"'°"'l..1,-1:;10,>M! 
c..-(h1'LOOll,~ OOl;tl£HOtQU1.._ll)ll00 IM( fll!AV(\t,u,« toll" 

t,01£_ 
' llU.\VU,rno1....u8llOC.,,lfO~l!QIIIQ!;IIQ 
~To,,tTO A.nt"ll>A..~f(llllrp,q(;Oo<$!.U:TIO"f 
-(TllfOW<P,Cl'fftr1,o•"''°"T011JoYOl$l~(O,TN1c••••••m 
21.r."-~MGIITll'U;OV-~~C"l.,.,,_!l>t!Oli<lf 
1>1t0111!.111UJ1oec.,,iNIO""llbGAl'IOf'l"-Nl...&IIUUt 

C-1 

79



80



81



02/09/2022 07:14 pm IP:[10.10.250.10] Packet No: 60862 

82



83


	0 AGENDA
	1 MEETING MINUTES OF THE JUNE 15, 2022 PLANNING AND LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATION BOARD MEETING
	2 KINGS CROSSING STORAGE FACILITY RE-ESTABLISHED SPECIAL EXCEPTION, APPLICATION # 5173
	3 PALM COST PARK – LOT 4, PARCEL 4 STORAGE FACILITY, A TECHNICAL SITE PLAN, APPLICATION # 4862
	4 BROWARD-PALM COAST STORAGE FACILITY, A TECHNICAL SITE PLAN, APPLICATION # 5077



